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Written testimony 

Chairman Mil ler opened d iscussion on SB 2294 relating to increased fees for use of dyed 
special fuel in a l icensed motor vehicle and display of consumer advisory information on 
pumps dispensing dyed fuel .  

Senator Dotzenrod introduced SB 2294 and explained the need for this bi l l .  There are 
three parts to the bi l l .  The first part changes fines; second part al lows other people or 
agencies to help with the enforcement of this law; third , the education part. He gave some 
history on how dyed fuel came into use and gave examples of what the fines are in 
surround ing states . 

Senator Heckaman asked the current tax differential between dyed and clear fuel .  

Senator Dotzenrod said it  was around 43 or 44 cents with the Federal and State together. 

Senator Klein asked if there was a federal penalty and if offenders get penalties at State 
and Federa l levels. 

Senator Dotzenrod said the Federal level can have some high penalties. He said he was 
not sure how they do it or who they send out to the states. He thinks they depend on the 
state. 

Kevin Schatz, supervisor of Motor Fuel Tax Department representing Cory Fang , North 
Dakota Tax Commissioner, testified in support of SB 2294 . He handed out and explained 
the statutes information regarding dyed fuel penalties from Montana, Minnesota and South 
Dakota . His second handout showed some statistics on use of dyed fuel in North Dakota 
over the last few years . He explained the handout and made reference to it. 
He stated that the Highway Patrol ,  Department of Transportation and the Tax 
Commissioners office had been receiving a number of complaints from the publ ic on 
misuse of dyed fuel at retai l location, plus people were steal ing dyed fuel from wel l  sites, 
construction sites or given the dyed fuel to go home on their off weeks. He said that the 
groups got together along with Mike Rud and determined it was time to enforce a dyed fuel 
program because of al l  the complaints. He explained the process includ ing that they 
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signed an agreement with the Internal Revenue Service ( IRS). I RS said that they would 
supply them free analyzes of all the samples if North Dakota did the enforcement. He 
explained the process of a violation and what they do and explained the penalties. He 
stated that the intent of the bi l l  is not to go out and assess a bunch of fees; their intent is to 
have visibil ity out there so that it deters people from using dyed fuel on the road . He 
stated , "Our intent is to get people to pay the tax at the t ime they put the fuel in their vehicle 
not when we catch them ." 

Senator Luick asked what happens in an emergency. Is there any leniency? 

Kevin Schatz answered that anytime there is dyed fuel in that vehicle the I RS standard is 
that you take a sample. The statute does al low for the commissioner to take things into 
consideration if they can provide the proper documentation . 

Different situations were d iscussed and how they would be hand led . 

Senator Klein said that according to the charts, North Dakota overal l  seem to be doing 
wel l  with min imal violations. He asked if he was read ing it properly that there were 53 
actual violations on the 31  00 actual checks. 

Kevin Schatz said that was correct. He gave reference that the statistics may not be 
correct because there were people driving by that did not stop and they had no extra 
highway patrol to chase them down. 

The rule is anytime you drive a vehicle that is required to be l icensed on any publ ic 
roadway it has to have clear fuel in it. 

Discussion fol lowed on agriculture and construction use of dyed fuel and rules associated 
with them. 

Senator Heckaman asked about data on second offenses and where the fines go. 

Kevin  Schatz said they had not had a second violation to date. He said the money 
col lected goes to the state highway d istribution fund . 

Senator Klein asked how many people they provide to help the highway patrol with 
checks. 

Kevin Schatz said that when they signed their agreement with the IRS, and they come into 
North Dakota and they find a violator; they send us the information so we have the 
opportun ity to send out an administrator's fee to the violator. In  turn , the tax commission 
sends their information to IRS so they can choose to send out their assessment to a 
violator. Mr. Schatz said they work with the Highway patrol and if they schedule some type 
of stop, the tax commissioner's office sends out four people to help with this. The people 
sent out are trained by I RS.  

Senator Mil ler asked what the federal tax penalty was. 
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Kevin Schatz rep l ied ten dollars per gallon or $1 000 whichever is more and doubles 
accord ing ly. 

Senator Mil ler asked who the main violators were. 

Kevin Schatz said it is mostly pickups, not so many large trucks. 

Discussion fol lowed on educational stickers for the pumps. 

Mike Rud, President of the North Dakota Petroleum Marketers Association (NDPMA) 
testified in support of SB 2294. Written testimony #2 

Senator Larsen had some concerns with the stickers and concern with the people that do 
not read Engl ish. He said maybe they need more un iformity. 

Mike Rud said they wou ld work with the tax department and come up with something that 
is proper and wi l l  work. 

Senator Larsen asked if doing the testing wou ld be more beneficial than increasing the 
fine to one thousand dol lars .  

Mike Rud said that there wi l l  be those that wi l l  continue to try to violate this and he sees 
the need to step up the fines. He stressed the need to do both, step up the compliance 
checks and increase the fines. 

Dan Rouse, legal counsel to the North Dakota office of the state tax commissioner, 
clarified that the stickers only apply to retailers . 

Senator Heckaman asked about the word ing of admin istrative fees versus just cal l ing it a 
fine. 

Dan Rouse said that administrative fees language is existing language used from the 
beginning.  The objective of the use of that language was intended to be an administrative 
fee versus a penalty or fine to indicate there are agency actions that have to take place 
after the tanks are d ipped and there is cost associated with that. It was seen as a 
reimbursement. 

Senator Heckaman said it was her understanding that none of this money is used for 
administration. 

Dan Rouse answered, that is correct. 

David Leftwich,  North Dakota Department of Transportation, testified in support of 
SB 2294. 

Richard Schlosser, North Dakota Farmers Union, testified in support of SB 2294 . 

No opposing testimony 
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Senator Mil ler closed the hearing on SB 2294. 

Senator Klein said that what he has heard in  testimony is that there are some abuses in  
the use of dyed fuel and this b i l l  wi l l  help the tax department and highway patrol to  enforce. 
He doesn't think that it's a major issue but is ready to move on and support it. 

Senator Larsen's approach would be more of an education approach. He thinks the fines 
are too high for the first and second offense. 

Senator Klein said that we probably need more time and we should wait for Senator Luick. 

Senator Mil ler closed the hearing SB 2294. 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Agricu lture Committee 
Roosevelt Park Room, State Capitol 

Minutes: 

SB 2294 
January 31, 2013 

18100 

D Conference Committee 

Discussion #21 Do Pass vote 

Chairman Mil ler opened discussion on SB 2294 relating to increased fees for use of dyed 
special fuel in a l icensed motor vehicle and d isplay of consumer advisory information on 
pumps d ispensing dyed fuel .  

Senator Larsen moved to adopt amendments 13.0717.01001 to SB 2294. These 
amendments wi l l  reduce the fines. 

Senator Klein seconded for d iscussion. 

Senator Luick missed part of the hearing so he asked questions of the tax department to 
inform him on what had been d iscussed in his absence. 

D iscussion fol lowed on enforcement of what is a lready in statues and if there is a reason to 
raise fines and how much is appropriate. Senator Larsen has some concerns on why fines 
have to be raised to $1000 on the first offense and argued that enforcement of the present 
law is what is needed . 

Chairman Mil ler cal led for a vote on amendment 13.0717.01001. 

Amendment fai led 1-4-0. 

Senator Heckaman moved a Do Pass and rerefer to Appropriations. 

Senator Klein seconded . 

Roll cal l  vote for Do Pass on SB 2294 and rerefer to Appropriations: 4-1-0 

Senator Mil ler is the carrier. 
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FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/21/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 't' r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an appropna 1ons an IC!pa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $106,000 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2294 increases the fees for use of dyed special fuel in a licensed 111otor vehicle. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2294 increases by four-fold the fees associated with the use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor 
vehicle. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

If enacted, SB 2294 is expected to increase revenues in the highway distribution fund by an estimated $106,000 
during the 2013-15 biennium. This reflects the increased revenue from the higher fees only. There is also an 
increase in fuels taxes collected in the regular manner due to increased compliance as a result of the state's 
presence in the field, monitoring vehicles and enforcing dyed fuel usage requirements. The positive revenue 
associated with enforcement efforts cannot be determined. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2294: Agriculture Committee (Sen. Miller, Chairman) recommends DO PASS and BE 

REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (4 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT 
AND NOT VOTING). SB 2294 was rereferred to the Appropriations Committee. 
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D Conference Committee 

Commi ttee Cl erk Signa tur e a� 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution: 

A B ILL for an Act to amend and reenact NDCC relating to increased fees for use of dyed 
special  fuel in a l icensed motor vehicle and display of consumer advisory information on 
pumps d ispensing dyed special fuel .  

Minutes: See attached testimony 

Chairman Holmberg cal led the committee to order on Tuesday, February 05, 201 3 in 
regards to SB 2294. Al l  committee members were present. 

Senator Dotzenrod , District 26 This is about dyed d iesel fuel. On dyed fuel there is a lmost 
no tax col lected , it is 4¢ compared to non-dyed d iesel fuel which is 44¢. A share on the tax 
is federal and a share is state. The dyed fuel is for non-highway use, we have laws that tel l  
people to use that fuel on non highway use, the d ifference in price now is 40 ¢a gal lon , 
there is a financial incentive to cheat and avoid paying the taxes. We have a law in the 
state, on page 1 l ine 16 ,  there is a $250 fine, what this bi l l  does is raise to $ 1 ,000, doubles 
it for the second offense, and doubles it again for the third offense. That wou ld match us 
with the states around us. We would have a uniform system . I t  is a significant raise in the 
fee. This is an attempt to make our law say that this is the serious matter. I n  Page 2 
removes the H ighway Patrol on l ines 14 and 1 6  so that other agencies can enforce the law, 
primarily the tax department. On page 3 the tax commissioner shal l  prescribe the size and 
contents of a sticker to be affixed to pumps d ispensing dyed fuel to advice consumers of 
the administrative fee imposed on a l icensed motor vehicle. I did not have this in m ind . We 
found that the tax department has been doing this for years, the system works well; the 
level of compliance is high. I've heard stories people saying that's pretty flagrant. We do 
need to be as serious as the states around us .  That's what the b i l l  does. The tax 
department is here and can share information . 

Senator Wanzek Could a private citizen make a report? 

Senator Dotzenrod the tax department has gotten phone calls from citizens. You can see 
the dyed fuel; the stuff has a stain ing capabil ity, you can see from the d istance who is 
breaking the law. For $250 don't bother that is not a disincentive, j ust let it go. It is not an 
issue with the semis; you can't grab the wrong one. I found myself surprised you have to 
look careful ly to make the right choice; you may make the wrong choice. One says off road 
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use only, I would l ike to see something that jumps out at you and that says the dol lar 
amount of fine and say, not for highway use. 

Senator Wanzek why wou ld there need to be dyed fuel at the retai l  station.  What examples 
would there be. 

Senator Dotzenrod At the Cennex station, bobcats, tractors pul l  in the township with their 
maintainer, so you have some off-road use. I don't know which fuel they use, the off-road 
d iesel farm equipment from time to time. 

Senator Carlisle: I am guessing the farmers are complaining . Most citizens, that's a cal l  
you can't m iss. In  the oil patch there is always a reason for the bi l l .  

Senator Dotzenrod after hearing what the tax department is finding out there, more and 
more is being abused . 

Chairman Holmberg no discussion on the fiscal note which is a $ 1 06 thousand dol lars of 
increased revenue some work around the state, tracking compliance. There are 
indications that people are bend ing the ru les and cheating on this. Given the serious 
matter of roads, and how we real ly need to have the funds to take care of and maintain our 
roads,  this bi l l  was introduced to get this in front of the legislature and have a d iscussion 
about where do we want to be. At $250 it looks l ike we are not serious about this matter. 
remember being chairman on the tax committee on Senate side, representative Dorsa, 
chair on the house side; we agreed everybody shou ld pay the tax. At the end of the year 
people who had off road use, wou ld ask for a refund. There is going to be cheating on this, 
we can't enforce it . I remember, 30,000 farmers in the state, hire extra people in the tax 
department, request for refunds. How do you separate out, using the fuel in the wrong 
place? We are going to have the dyed fuel avai lable to the public, and not have to go 
through the refund process. The buyer is expected to fol low the rules. 

Kevin Johnson,  Supervisor Motor fuel tax, Tax commissioner's office. The use of d iesel 
fuel has increased over the last few years. ( 1 5 .20) 
Testimony attached # 1 :  Page one shows North Dakota Diesel Fuel Use; page two shows 
the dyed fuel sampling statistics and confirmed violations. Anything that is not clear is sent 
to the lab. A little history about dyed fuel ,  the federal government through the I RS 
implemented the use of dyed fuel in 1 997 did that for tax purposes, for dyed fuel there is no 
fed tax in either ag, industrial or rai lroad use, North Dakota has an excise tax on dyed fuel 
which is 4¢/gal lon rate, on clear fuel is 23¢/gallon, and the federal tax on clear fuel is 
24 .50¢/gal lon d ifference between dyed fuel and clear fuel is 43 .50¢ a gal lon . 
The tax commissioner, highway patrol and North Dakota Department of Transportation 
(DOT) got tips from customers; they were seeing a lot of vehicles using dyed fuel .  We got 
together with petroleum marketers group, the highway patrol ,  North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) and the tax commissioner about what to do to enforce the 
requirements. H ighway Patrol doesn't have the resources to do that. The tax 
commissioner and the Highway Patrol decided that if they did the traffic control and the 
safety issues for us we wou ld actually do the d irty work and do the fuel d ipping on their 
behalf we a lso signed an agreement with internal revenue service, in November of last year  
that when we are doing dyed fuel enforcement they would pay for our  inspections at  a 
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certified lab. There is no charge except the postage to get them to the lab and they send us 
the resu lts. The intent to the enforcement effort was to have a presence out there and 
show people that we are checking . Our intent is to be out there so that they put in the 
correct fuel at the time they are fi l l ing . We are going to d ifferent parts of the state , so that 
we are not picking on one certain area . We found there are a lot of places that have dyed 
fuels at the pump. Many complaints at the western part of the state about out of state 
vehicle plates. We found that commercial drivers are complying. It is mostly pickups, We 
concentrated in some of those areas, we checked 492 vehicles no violations, we were at 
the old rest area where most of the d iesel vehicles d id not stop in spite of the sign saying al l  
d iesel vehicles must enter; otherwise we have had some success on our inspections. The 
states of MN and Mt both have the $1,000 fee. 

Senator O'Connell: I thought the federal law was $5,000 fine the first time and then 
doubled . Where do the fines go at this time? I thought the fed was taking care of this. 

Mr. Johnson every state has their own fuel enforcement with an administrative fee and 
the I nternal Revenue has one for the federal side of the tax. Internal Revenue Service can 
go to an industrial contractor, they catch one of their, their penalties can be pretty stiff. 
Once we get the resu lts from the sample if it exceeds, the minimum for the federal standard 
as the statute says we send out an administrative fee for $250 and when we do an 
inspection we determine the size of the fuel tank and we charge them 1 9¢ a gallon , based 
on the size of the tank. We don't know how many times they have fi l led that tank. 

Senator Erbele What triggers the sampling , Is there tolerance in there? 

Mr. Johnson: when we pul l  that tube out and not clear, we send it in .  People wi l l  dump oi l 
into the fuel tank to mask the dye we were certified to conduct these inspections by the 
I nternal Revenue Service. We also find in some of those cases the fuel is orange or yellow 
that is biod iesel .  Anything not clear we send in to make sure there is no dye. There is a 
min imum al lowance ( .6) set by the IRS,  if it is above that it is a violation; most cases we 
have seen 6 up to 1 5. 

Mike Rud , President of North Dakota Petroleum Marketers, we stand in support of 2294. 
I n  20 1 0  we had a couple of members who cal led in saying what can we do about dyes? 
We got together with tax, North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT) wou ld l ike to 
touch on the fine for the marketer, IRS, if a marketer is knowingly al lowing this on its 
premises is the same fine. We wi l l  continue to educate our members to make sure this is 
being done. 

Senator O'Connell Is propane being used? 

Mike Rud: (27. 50) I don't know 

Senator Mathern what type of diesel is green? 

Mike Rud: I do believe a biod iesel .  A different sulfur d iesel. I am not sure. 

Senator Gary Lee we've heard some pretty good information today moved a Do Pass. 
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Senator Wanzek second . 

No d iscussion. 

A rol l  cal l  vote was taken .  Yea: 1 1 ,  Nay 1 ,  Absent 1 .  Senator Mi l ler wil l  carry the b i l l .  

Chairman Holmberg Motion carries b i l l  goes back to agriculture committee. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2294 



Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2294 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0112112013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I d t'' d I evels an appropnat1ons an JcJpated un er current aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $106,000 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2294 increases the fees for use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor vehicle. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2294 increases by four-fold the fees associated with the use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor 
vehicle. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

If enacted , SB 2294 is expected to increase revenues in the highway distribution fund by an estimated $106,000 
during the 2013-15  biennium. This reflects the increased revenue from the higher fees only. There is also an 
increase in fuels taxes collected in the regular manner due to increased compliance as a result of the state's 
presence in the field, monitoring vehicles and enforcing dyed fuel usage requirements. The positive revenue 
associated with enforcement efforts cannot be determined. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C .  Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2294: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends DO PASS 

(1 1 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2294 was placed on the 
Eleventh order on the calendar. 
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Commi ttee Cl erk Signa tur e . 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution : 

(Fiscal Note) 
Relating to increased fees for use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor 
vehicle and display of consumer advisory information on pumps dispensing 
dyed special fuel 

Minutes: 2 

Senator Dotzenrod, Sponsor: The pump in town has two choices with red dyed and 
clear. There is about 44 cents less cost to the dyed fuel. The highway-use fuel is clear and 
more expensive to pay which is for highway taxes. Tractors , construction equipment, 
generators, etc. can use red fuel because they are not used on road . 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6  changes the $250 fine to $1,000. Montana is $ 1 ,000, Minnesota is $ 1 ,000. 
The second offense doubles the fine and again on the third offense. At the fourth offense it 
is $ 1 0 ,000. If we cheat on our income tax, the consequences are also severe. We need to 
keep roads up.  Farmers are concerned about the cheating. 

Page 2 ,  l ine 5 has provisions that al low the highway patrol to use others to assist. The tax 
department can help enforce law. 

Page 3, there is direction to the tax commissioner to create a sticker to go on the pump to 
advise the public of the violation and what the fine is. It isn't clear when pul l ing up to a 
pump to see the d ifference. 

The reason I got involved is we had some testimony in  the Senate Tax Committee. The Tax 
Department had done some surveys and they were concerned about the increasing use of 
the dyed fuel on highway applications. 

The existing $250 fine can be made up quickly just by cheating . 

Representative Headland: Your pumps in town have red fuel? 

Senator Dotzenrod: Yes. Semis are at a different location with only clear fuel .  
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Representative Larson : On the second page it talks about fuel sampling statistics. (See 
attached #1 ) Is this something where we would see l ike a OU I compliance where vehicles 
wou ld be stopped to test the fuel. 

Senator Dotzenrod : With cell phone technology today, people find out and start going 
around the stop. In the first hour some noncompliance is found . 

Representative Larson: This wou ld include any vehicle? 

Senator Dotzenrod : Yes. 

Representative Fehr: Explain again where you overstruck on page 2 and the purpose. 

Senator Dotzenrod : On line 5 we added "and the assistance of." It makes it clear that 
the Tax Commissioner can be of assistance. They have done compliance checks but 
haven't had the authority in the law to be as involved as they would l ike to be. 

Representative Fehr: The reason for the overstrike l ike in l ine 14 & 1 6  is because it is not 
just the highway patrol? 

Chairman Dennis Johnson:  Wil l  we need more FTEs? 

Senator Dotzenrod: I don't know? They are doing some work now with current FTEs. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: We are talking about state fines? Where is the I RS in this 
picture? 

Senator Dotzenrod : The IRS gets some of this information from the state. The tax 
department can tel l  you .  

Chairman Dennis Johnson: With my experience we wou ld get the federal inspectors. 
The federa l  fines are $ 1 0 /gal lon X the capacity of the unit on the first offense. The second 
offense is $1 00 /gal lon X capacity of the unit. The state I am fami liar with is Nebraska and 
that fine is $ 1 ,000. 

Representative Belter: How does the procedure of enforcement work? When they 
del ivered fuel on my farm they mistakenly put dyed into road diesel .  Do they test by 
percentage? 

Senator Dotzenrod : The dye is persistent. It is hard to get out. Once the red fuel is in the 
fuel filter you need to change the filter. 

Representative Kiefert: Some of these are less than a percent. Some are . 93%. 

Senator Dotzenrod : If you use red fuel and then use clear, it takes a long time. The tax 
department goes into the tank with a tube. If it looks clear, they wi l l  let that vehicle go. If it 
looks colored , they wil l take a sample. I don't know how many ful l  tanks you have to go 
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through to get it out of the system . Most people have to drain their tanks and change the 
fi lter. 

Representative Kiefert: We have a 200 gallon tank on the back of our truck for a service 
tank.  A trace amount could set it off. 

Senator Dotzenrod : You can't use the same containers. 

Kevin Schatz, Motor Fuel Supervisor with North Dakota Tax Department: 
(See attached # 1 )  

First page of attached #1 , over five years clear fuel use increased by 82%. Dyed fuel 
increased by 9 1 %. In 201 2  the use of clear diesel increased . We are hoping a portion of 
this is due to our efforts. 

Second page, those percentages have nothing to do with the amount of dye in the fuel .  It 
is the percent of vehicles caught. 

The IRS statute requires us to go by the amount that they determine. They have a 
min imum amount that you can have. 

Second page has the locations and dates and numbers. The samples taken are those 
where the fuel has some type of color. We put a sample in a bottle and send the sample to 
a lab to have it tested . 

Last page shows neighboring states and the Internal Revenue Service penalties. They 
vary a l ittle. Some have criminal penalties and some don't. Minnesota , Montana, and the 
IRS have $ 1 ,000 for a first time penalty. South Dakota has a $250 penalty for pickups and 
cars and a $500 penalty for a first violation for a large truck. 

History about the enforcement program. The Highway Patrol officers were receiving 
complaints about i l lega l  use of dyed fuel .  I t  was mostly in the western part of the state. 
The Highway Patrol ,  the Dept. of Transportation, the Tax Commissioner, and Mike Rud and 
the Petroleum Marketers got together to look at doing an enforcement program.  The 
Highway Patrol has the authority to stop and inspect vehicles. They do not have the 
resources. The Tax Commissioner's office signed an agreement where we would help by 
doing the dirty work. We wou ld take samples when necessary and send them in .  Dyed 
fuel saves 44 cents /gal lon . It is a loss of 1 9  cents to the state and 24 . 5  cents /gal lon for the 
federal tax which is actually a total of 43.5 cents. The intent of this b i l l  is to deter the use 
of dyed fuel on the road . 

We began enforcement in  October of 201 1 .  They always ask us a long with weight and 
safety inspections. The Highway Patrol provides a safe environment. 

North Dakota is a lso the 45th state to enter into an agreement with the IRS .  They provide a 
free analysis and a certified lab to determine the concentration of the dye. They wi l l  have a 
presence here a lso mostly in the western part of the state. The inspectors have been 
certified by the IRS.  The job can be done with the personnel we have. 
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Chairman Dennis Johnson :  It is interesting with complaints from the publ ic seeing red 
fuel being used . I n  Will iston with 492 vehicles tested and 0% violation . Devils Lake is the 
highest with 1 8% violation . 

Kevin Schatz: We have signs that we put out on the highway. On the day of the Wil l iston 
stop, the Highway Patrol d id not have an officer to stand out on the highway and d i rect 
traffic .  We rel ied on the sign so a lot of them drove by. They don't pay attention un less 
there is an office out there directing them to come in .  

Chairman Dennis Johnson: Can you go on private property l ike sale barns? 

Kevin Schatz: We only test on publ ic roadways. The IRS does have the authority to go 
on private property. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: The IRS,  I bel ieve, has zero tolerance. I ran out of fuel in 
Nebraska . We put 1 5  gal lons in of dyed . Then added 200 gal lons of clear fuel to what was 
left. Two weeks later we added clear again .  A week later we were stopped . They pul led a 
sample and 9 months later we received a $7500 fine. I got it reduced to $ 1 200 because I 
cou ld prove with receipts for 2 ,000 mi les of clear fuel . 

Kevin Schatz: They do now have a small tolerance bui lt in .  

Representative Rust: From 2008-2009 I am wondering if  the dyed diesel gal lon decrease 
was due to land not being farmed . In our area we had counties that were seed ing 1 0-1 5% 
of normal crop. 

Kevin Schatz: That is what we attribute as wel l .  

Representative Rust: I d id have people cal l  me about the number of vehicles fi l led with 
dyed fuel . Oi l  companies are fi l l ing their  tanks with dyed fuel. On page 2 Wil l iston had 492 
vehicles and yet no samples taken? 

Kevin Schatz: That was what I addressed previously. People were driving past because 
there was not an officer out on the highway. 

Representative Rust: How can you have 492 tested and no samples taken? 

Kevin Schatz: For the samples taken is where we find colored fuel and put a sample in a 
bottle. We stuck a tube in 492 vehicles and they were al l  clear fuel. If it is clear no sample 
is taken. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson:  Do you have to take a sample or can you check the exhaust 
pipe for sulfur? 

Kevin Schatz: Any time we pul l  the tube out we have to pul l  a sample according to I RS 
standards. 
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Representative Belter: On the vehicles tested , was there a more common type with those 
in violation? 

Kevin Schatz: We find very few trucks. It is mostly pickup trucks. What we've heard is 
that people working on the oil rigs fi l l  with dyed fuel to drive home. In Minnesota they 
caught one from the rig going to Minneapolis with both saddle tanks and a tank on the back 
fi l led with dyed fuel and said his company foreman gave it to him so he could d rive home 
and back. Most are from customers who see someone fi l l ing at the pump with dyed fue l .  

Representative Belter: On the fiscal note there is $ 1 06 ,000 revenue. In appropriations 
there is a funding b i l l  to take care of the cost to start the program. Do you know what the 
amount is? 

Kevin Schatz: We appl ied for a grant from the federal highway administration for 
compliance efforts for $ 1 00,000 to provide for a pickup, equipment, maintenance, and 
sending aud itors to train ing, compliance conferences. 

Representative Headland: Do you statistics that show repeat offenses. Is there evidence 
that suggest our fines are not enough of a deterrent? 

Kevin Schatz: We have done this only for a year. We have not stopped somebody with 
mult iple violations. 

Representative Kiefert: You said standards are set federal ly. Do they have graduations 
in the penalties? 

Kevin Schatz: The statute says by federal standards. So we go by IRS standards. 

Representative Kiefert: Can we get a copy of the tolerance levels. Is there an 
emergency clause for on the road? 

Kevin Schatz: The way we are enforcing that is if it exceeds the federal  min imum 
standards,  then we send out a notice of fee. 

Representative Heilman: We have a state fine and then there is potential for federal  
fines . How often do they get slapped with both fines? 

Kevin Schatz: A sample is treated l ike evidence. We forward it to the I RS lab and they 
send a copy of those results. We send out a notice of fee. The IRS fines are confidential 
so they don't let us know that. They do have the authority to go on property and assess a 
fee and check a tank. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: Is the reservation exempt? 

Kevin Schatz: The statute for reservation special fuels tax does not address dyed fuel .  
We do assess for dyed fuel used by an individual on the reservation. The on ly exemption 
is if a vehicle is owned by tribe. We have an agreement with al l  tribes. They fol low our 
statutes and then we do a share of that tax with them. 
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(42 :55) 
Representative Larson : If you catch someone with red dye fuel ,  do you just let them go 
again on the highway. 

Kevin Schatz: They pul l  over, we take a sample and send it in for a test. We fi l l  out an 
inspection report with l icense number, etc. When we receive the resu lts that there is dye, a 
notice is sent to the reg istered owner. 

Representative Larson: The fel low that had his tanks fi l led with red dyed fuel could a lso 
be pul led over again in Minnesota? 

Kevin Schatz: We give them 24 hours to drain their tank and fi l l  with clear. Minnesota 
sends us a l ist. They had one person they gave 24 hours and they caught him 30 hours 
later with red fuel so he got nai led twice in two days. 

Representative Fehr: If this is passed , what will you do different? 

Kevin Schatz: The testing wou ld stay the same. We wou ld not need an agreement with 
the Highway Patrol to assist them. 

Representative Fehr: Do we need this law? 

Kevin  Schatz: The basic concept of this bi l l is to raise the fee from $250 to $ 1,000 for a 
first offense. 

Representative Fehr: When wi l l  you have information about repeat offenders? 

Kevin Schatz: I have no idea when that person wi l l  come through one of our inspection 
sites again .  

Representative Fehr: Would it be a year or two years? 

Kevin Schatz: As soon as someone goes through an inspection site two times. Our 
database would show a previous offense. 

Representative Fehr: The reason you don't have re-offense data is because you just 
implemented the program. When you catch them the first time are they continu ing to 
offend? 

Kevin  Schatz: Some states have the authority to check an offender anytime they want in  
a two year period . We don't have that authority. We have to rely on catching them at 
another site. 

Representative Fehr: Just looking at the numbers, it looks l ike the system is working . 

Kevin Schatz: Because there is such a short period of time that is correct. 
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Representative Kiefert: Can they put up a sign for a check station anywhere they l ike? 

Kevin Schatz: I don't know the Highway Patrol's authority. They invite us a long when they 
do weight and safety checks. 

Dan Rouse, Legal Counsel to the Tax Dept.: Part of the reason is to change the fines. 
The other part is to en large the scope of what we can do. 

We are not a law enforcement agency. We need the Highway Patrol to carry out our 
duties safely. 

It is hard to predict where these violations wi l l  occur. We have tried to focus on 
reasonableness. We understand circumstances. If IRS says it is dyed , it is. But we don't 
want to surprise people. 

We have samples of stickers. We want to remind people that if you are going to use the 
roads in North Dakota, you have a responsibil ity to help pay for that. We don't profi le. 
There was a sign at one of the stops and a lady with a Mercedes pul led in with d iesel car. 

We can share the database when we determine what the trends are. I don't think there is a 
trend. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson :  Could you identifying pumps with a red stripe. Those tests 
do get sent to the IRS.  Do other states' tax departments get involved with the Highway 
Patrol? 

Dan Rouse: It has been a cooperative effort in other states. We need the assistance of 
the Highway Patrol .  The Highway Patrol has brought a vehicle back to the check point if 
they drive by. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson : The IRS checked in Oklahoma when I was on private 
property. They wanted my driver's l icense before they did it. I had the option to get 
checked or not but then they wou ld pul l  my driver's l icense. 

Dan Rouse: We heavily apply reasonableness. We can go on private land but we don't. 

Representative Headland: I hope this doesn't imply that the agriculture community is 
abusing this. 

Why wou ld I support an increased penalty? 

Dan Rouse: The statistics wi l l  show that the activity is occurring . It is not agriculture or oi l  
and gas but across. That is why they have given us a grant for a pickup truck to observe 
more of that activity. The increased penalty gets more attention. 

Representative Headland : I agree. But we don't have anything to suggest that this won't 
happen with the current fine structure. The people that get caught a second time wil l get a 
good penalty. 
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Dan Rouse: We are in the beginning stage of this process. We wi l l  start seeing a pattern . 
We are not out there every day, only at the invitation of the Highway Patrol .  

Representative Belter: You are taking some of the responsibil ity away from the Highway 
Patrol and giving it to the tax dept. 

Dan Rouse: Now we can't do anything without the Highway Patrol .  We are looking to 
connect with other law enforcement agencies. We don't issue a citation ,  we issue a notice. 

Representative Belter: If this passes, and there is red dye, the Highway Patrol has the 
authority to test without the tax dept .? 

Dan Rouse: Yes in theory that authority exists, but mechanical ly they can't do that. Our 
staff is trained to do that as well as the IRS. 

Representative Belter: Why can't we give that authority to the Highway Patrol? 

Dan Rouse: I have asked that also and I don't have a good answer. The Highway Patrol 
has looked to us as a revenue-generating agency with our training. This is new for us.  The 
Highway Patrol has chosen not to pursue this area . It has been on the law for decades. 

Representative Belter: The Highway Patrol is the one out there al l  the time stopping 
trucks. If we want to enforce this, they are the ones with the opportunity. Every Highway 
Patrolman can carry a stick and a bottle. We can enhance our enforcement. 

Representative Larson : How did it come about in the first place that the tax dept. became 
involved? 

Dan Rouse: The law is in our title 57-43.2 which is the special fuels chapter of the Century 
Code. We are the tax department and we are supposed to collect taxes. 

Representative Larson :  When the Highway Patrol pul ls over a vehicle and they suspect 
someone of d riving under the influence, they don't have Human Services there. There is a 
special part of the code for being under the influence also which doesn't fal l  under Highway 
Patrol .  Was it the tax department that offered or did they come to you? 

Dan Rouse: This law has been on the books for decades. Over the years the Highway 
Patrol is heavily tasked . This is not a high priority of their many responsibi l ities. It had 
been pushed to the side. This was an opportunity for the tax dept. to cooperate with law 
enforcement to make sure people are paying the tax. This evolution slowly took place. We 
received the I RS train ing . It is low cost because the IRS pays for the testing. 

Representative Larson : They deal with what is in plain sight un less they get a warrant. 
You don't have to have it in plain sight. 

Dan Rouse: That is the point. We don't target or search . We do an inspection .  
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Chairman Dennis Johnson:  We are starting with one pickup. Are you going to be back 
next session need ing more p ickups and FTEs? 

Dan Rouse: No. 

Representative Kiefert: The concern I have is regarding trace amounts. I t  goes into a 
graduated penalty or fine after a positive sample. How does the trace amount come into 
play? I would l ike to see some documentation. 

Dan Rouse: Mr. Schatz wi l l  get that information. The circumstances are secondary. We 
wil l l isten. 

Representative Kiefert: Do we need stickers on our gas cans? 

Dan Rouse: The stickers that we are talking about are for those on the pump. 

Representative Kiefert: A teaspoon of red fuel, wil l  that contaminate 5 gallons of clear 
fuel? Do we need separate cans? 

Dan Rouse: If it is found dyed , it is. You have to manage what you do. 

Representative Fehr: When there is compliance of the law, there are three things. One is 
that people understand the law. Two, there is a perception they may be caught. Three, 
what are the consequences. When you look at raising the fees, people need to see that 
they wi l l  be caught. If they get caught, they wi l l  be angry because they know the neighbor 
down the road who routinely runs dyed fuel . There needs to be a perception that if they 
take the risk that there is monitoring . Just raising the fine ignores the other two and doesn't 
increase compliance. 

Dan Rouse: We have tried to increase the awareness. One of our focuses is education . 
We have issued press releases. People want to comply. They need a gentle reminder. 

Representative Belter: Is there a penalty for the seller of fuel that knowingly sells dyed? 

Dan Rouse: It has been talked about. That depends on you or is there another way to do 
this through education, inspection ,  and enforcement. 

Mike Rud, North Dakota Petroleum Marketers President: (See attached #2) (No aud io) 
There is an IRS Penalty. The decal wi l l  display the fine. A lot are not fi l l ing at the station 
but instead out of a service tank. 

Robin Rehborg, State Fleet Director for DOT: We are in support of this bi l l  due to 
increased revenues for the state highways. 

Opposition : None 

Chairman Dennis Johnson:  closed the hearing 
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Relating to increased fees for use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor 
vehicle and display of consumer advisory information on pumps dispensing 
dyed special fuel 

Minutes: 

Chairman Johnson: This bi l l  is about raising the fines from $250 to $ 1 ,000 per incident. 

Representative Fehr: The rate increase wasn't j ustified because they d idn't produce the 
data that I was looking for in terms of repeat offenses. 

Chairman Johnson: They are justifying going to $1 000 to have a bigger hammer and 
match with other states. When they send that sample to IRS what do they do with it? We 
d idn't get that answered . The IRS usually goes with $ 1 0  X capacity of tank for the first 
offense. The second offense is $ 1 00 X capacity of tank. Going to $ 1 ,000 is insign ificant 
compared to getting involved with the IRS.  

Representative Trottier: An ind ividual in MN had a six-year old pickup. The I RS took the 
mi leage from when he bought it and assumed he was using that fuel since he owned it. 

Chairman Johnson:  Our tax department l ikes to work with people. But the I RS is a whole 
d ifferent story. 

One pickup and staff wi l l  bring them back with a need for more. 

Representative Belter: My concern is they are going at this backwards. It should be the 
responsibi l ity of the Highway Patrol . They want the tax department to get more involved . 
The Highway Patrol a lready has kits that they carry to test. Why do we need the tax 
department out there? I can't support it the way it is written . 

Representative Rust: I had a constituent contacting me about a loss of state revenue. I 
went to the Highway Patrol and was informed that was not their mission.  Then I went to the 
tax department and he was concerned about the number of staff members. 
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The Highway Patrol in our area has more priorities. We need the director here from the 
Highway Patrol to get his thoughts. 

Representative Belter: The overstruck language is to take the Highway Patrol out of it. 
They all carry kits in their vehicle. The test is a very simple process. If we want to catch 
them, the Highway Patrol is the one with the most contact. The Appropriations Committee 
has taken the money out for the pickup. 

1 1 : 1 5  Chairman Johnson:  The pickup has been donated by the IRS.  

Representative Kiefert: My concern was about trace elements. I n  a lab environment 
they can test parts per bi l l ion . What about the previous owner? I never d id receive an 
answer on that? 

Representative Larson : Why is this just the Highway Patrol and not a l l  law enforcement? 

Representative M. Nelson: It is not a criminal matter. It is a tax department issue. You 
wou ld have to have an agreement between them and the tax department to do it . 

Chairman Johnson : It started with Motor Carriers. 

Representative Headland: I n  my county they have a truck regu latory person on staff and 
he has the abil ity to check for dyed fuel .  

Representative Fehr: Do other entities also send samples to the IRS.  

Chairman Johnson: My thought would be i t  al l  goes to I RS.  

Representative Belter: If we are going to pass it, should there be language that holds 
responsibil ity to retai lers if they knowingly know a pickup fi l ls dyed fuel? 

Representative Heilman : I was thinking about that also. For the bigger stations it wou ld 
be hard for them. You would have to go to security tapes. 

I agree it shou ld be in the Highway Patrol's j urisd iction .  I don't think we need to raise the 
fine, we need to enforce it. 

17:30 Chairman Johnson: I ta lked to the HP one day. He said they have so many other 
issues. 

Representative Boschee: A lot of this with enforcement is after the fact something's 
happened . Are there other states where everyone does something before where you have 
to have a permit or decal on your vehicle before fi l l ing up with this type of red dye? 

Chairman Johnson : Not really, it's just common knowledge. 
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Representative Fehr: I 'm thinking at the point of sale at the pump, a few years ago when 
gasol ine switched to unleaded there was a different size nozzle. Are they the same size? 

Chairman Johnson : The opening is large enough to go with either one. 

20:34 Representative M. Nelson: I don't want to make it hard on the retai lers because 
they wi l l  pu l l  the pump out. 

Representative Trottier: I t sounds l ike there are a lot of problems with the bi l l .  
Does it  have to be studied? 

Chairman Johnson : My bulk dealer knows who is running red fuel. 

Representative Fehr: We should be looking at point of sale as much, or more so than the 
enforcement that the Tax Department is looking at. 

22:52 Chairman Johnson: The only hesitation is that stations are trying to get help. I t  
goes back to the owner of that business and puts them in a tough position .  

Representative Rust: How much of (point of sale) it happens at a gas station or  i s  i t  more 
at the farm or business site with bulk tanks. 

Representative Belter: Page 3 talks about the commissioner having a sticker. Don't the 
pumps have a sticker on the now? 

Chairman Johnson : For road use only or for farm off road use only? 

24:49 Representative Belter: I move a Do Not Pass. 

Representative Trottier: Seconded the motion . 

I n  regards to the point of sale and looking at a study things haven't been looked at, not just 
cameras. If it's point of sale, do al l  the pumps have stickers on? Could there be things 
done more efficiently in terms of the nozzle? Who buys bulk fuel? I think a study makes 
more sense. 

Representative Belter: I am going to withdraw my motion .  I wou ld remove the overstrikes 
deal ing with the Highway Patrol .  

Representative Boschee: Line 4, page 2 does that help you feel better about the Highway 
Patrol a lready having the authority? They aren't issuing a citation. It's whatever agency 
that's provid ing the notice of violation . 

30:50 Representative Headland: I'd l ike to move an amendment for Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6  under 
Subdivision A. We should lower it to $500 instead of $1 000. For the second penalty we 
cou ld leave it as is. 

Representative Larson : Seconded the motion. 
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Amendment passed on a voice vote. 

32:31 Representative Rust: Any thought about cutting al l  of those in half? 

Representative Belter: I am confused about the overstrike stuff. 

Representative Trottier: The original statute has the current language in there about the 
Highway Patrol .  

Representative Belter: I move to take out a l l  the language on l ine 5 ,  the overstrikes on l ine 
14, reinstate al l  the old language on page 2. 

Chairman Johnson : Some of the language in  here is a stylistic change. To put it in the 
way it is in other parts of the Code. 

35:06 Representative Boschee: There isn't a citation any more. It's a notice of violation. It 
a l lows the opportun ity to d ispute and wait for the resu lts to come in. In  the interim this is 
what you have to do. 

Representative Rust: By leaving the Highway Patrol in that means anyone else who stops 
you it doesn't apply? It l imits it to just that entity where there is a civil penalty. The Tax 
Department wants you to pul l  over it is not a big deal .  If the Highway Patrol is out there now 
this kicks i n .  I l ike the strike i n  there. Item #4 only the Highway Patrol can issue the 
citation . 

37:41 Chairman Dennis Johnson: Purpose of the bi l l  was so the tax department could be 
on site at the same inspection . 

Representative Belter: That is where there is a problem. The whole enforcement has to 
be the responsibi l ity of the Highway Patrol .  Testing the fuel has to be done by the officer 
who sends to the state lab. Then it is the responsibi lity of the tax department that enforces 
it. I want the Highway Patrol to be the primary source of getting the sample. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson : The sample is sent to the IRS.  

Representative Belter: I move a Do Not Pass. 

Chairman Johnson: Motion of Do Not Pass as amended on SB 2294. 

Representative Kiefert: Seconded the motion 

A Do Not Pass Roll Call vote: Yes = 5, No = 7, Absent = 1 .  

Motion of Do Not Pass as amended failed . 
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Representative Larson: I move a Do Pass as amended. 

Representative Haak: Seconded the motion 

A Do Pass Roll Call vote: Yes = 6, No = 7, Absent = 0. Motion fai led. 

Representative Kiefert: This is going to add another agency looking for violators? 

46:24 Representative Headland: If we pass this bi l l ,  the tax department wil l  be pul l ing 
veh icles over. People won't understand this. This should be the Highway Patro l .  

Representative Heilman: I don't care for the tax department having an enforcement 
vehicle going around doing this. 

Representative Trottier: Is it possible to ask for the Highway Patrol to come in? 

Chairman Johnson: We wil l  reopen this bi l l  next Thursday. Adjourned the committee. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution : 

Comm ittee Work 
(Fiscal Note) 
Relating to increased fees for use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor 
vehicle and display of consumer advisory information on pumps dispensing 
dyed special fuel 

Minutes: Attachment #1 

Colonel James Prochniak: The North Dakota H ighway Patrol must review some of our 
responsibi l ities by looking for efficiencies in the way we conduct business. We have placed 
a heavy focus by getting back to the basics of our job. In the past year we have decl ined 
offers from Federal Motor Carriers, Federal Rai lway, and the U .S .  Treasury. They offered 
extra money for us to work with their needs. We have had to concentrate on immediate 
traffic safety needs. As we review our operations, the goal of maximum visibi l ity and patrol 
is a lways considered . 

Two agency bi l l  submissions have proposed law changes which can add efficiency and 
greater visibi l ity. We can reduce unnecessary work load and risk to our officers. HB  1 1 26 
wou ld remove the responsibi l ity of troopers from conducting salvage vehicle inspections. 
Currently we cover about 6,000 to 6,500 vehicle inspections a year. This wou ld place the 
responsibi l ity in the hands of those who know vehicles which are mechanics. Another b i l l  
proposes el iminating reporting of crashes involved in undomesticated animals. 
Car-deer crashes are a col lection of paper work that isn't used by the insurance industry. 

Our current role of the dyed fuel col lection: 
We do truck saturations throughout the state. We may set up at any corner that is safe .  
When we schedu le them , we notify the tax department. They may or  may not show up .  
Our officers have no part in the dyed fuel sampl ing. They are deal ing with the drivers and 
the mechanica l  components of the truck. The Highway Patrol doesn't follow up when a 
meat inspector goes to a locker or when the Health Department goes to a restaurant. 

This is a fuel tax issue both at the state and at the federal level . It doesn't prevent a crash 
or change bad driving behavior. If we get involved with this, it wi l l  increase the work load 
that I am trying to reduce. It is not as simple as d ipping the tank. Officers have to carry it 
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until they get to the regional office. At a rural location they may have to carry that sample 
for some time unti l they get to the reg ional office. It becomes a case with paperwork just 
l ike DU I .  We have to keep the paperwork for seven years. It pul ls the officer off of the 
road . We don't need this extra duty. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: In the past have you ever gotten involved in d ipping tanks? 

Colonel James Prochniak: Back in the 90's there was an IRS grant. We went into it 
l ightly. We then found the involvement with it took time for people contesting.  The new kits 
now are better. After the grant was up for renewal ,  we decided we didn't want to be 
involved any more. Then we entered an MOU with the tax department because the issue 
sti l l  existed . They were looking for a mechanism by which they cou ld go about col lecting 
these because they d idn't have the enforcement arm to wave over a truck. 

Representative Belter: Currently you do have kits for sampling? 

Colonel James Prochniak: We no longer have those kits. That was back in the 90s. 

Representative Belter: There are kits available that are better than what they used to 
be? 

Colonel James Prochniak: The new kits are smaller in profi le. 

Representative Belter: Since the 1 990s the Highway Patrol has done no enforcement of 
the dyed fuel law? 

Colonel James Prochniak: We do not do that. If we see an obvious violation , we wil l 
forward that information to the tax department. 

Representative Belter: We have an obligation to ensure that these taxes are paid . If we 
want to enforce this, the best way to give you the responsibi l ity is to take the sample and 
then the sample is sent to the state tax department. You are the ones that have the most 
visibi l ity. If the industry knows that it is your cars, it is the best way to get enforcement. I 
think the appropriations committee has already stripped out that grant money to get a 
vehicle. It is not getting enforced by the current plan. I am very adamant that it should be 
led by the H ighway Patrol .  

Colonel James Prochniak: I f  i t  is contested , we are the ones called in .  I would rather not 
get involved . 

( 1 6 : 1 0) 
Representative Larson : Have you noticed an increase in the amount of violent offenders 
that you need your patrolmen trained in approach ing in a lot more safe ways? Do you 
notice an increase in your work load apart from this? 

Colonel James Prochniak: Yes, the numbers of times weapons and force are used is 
increasing . With our current staffing , it is only a matter of t ime before one of our officers is 
seriously hurt. 
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Representative Larson : Do you need to prioritize your efforts for safety? 

Colonel James Prochniak: That is what I am getting at. We do have to prioritize and get 
back to the basics . We have to have l ive action training. The day and age of being in a 
gun range and shooting at a target is long gone. We have officers moving, shouting,  l ights 
flashing,  etc. You have to train l ike it is really going to happen. 

Representative Kiefert: Would it be more favorable to have the Truck Regulatory Division 
and not everybody burdened with it? 

Colonel James Prochniak: We have about 1 8  uniformed officers that deal with the motor 
carrier industry. They are sworn officers and go through the same train ing. This would 
only add to their work load . That group of officers, to me, would be the natural 
consideration because they deal with that industry. 

Representative Kiefert: Maybe we should give it to the Sheriffs Department as a local 
thing . 

Colonel James Prochniak: They would scream.  Other law enforcement has the same 
issues. 

Representative Belter: We understand the new world that your officers operate in. We 
need to enforce this law. We are not expecting the Highway Patrol to hunt for these. You 
have the random inspections where you are pull ing al l trucks over or the traffic violation 
where you are pul l ing someone over l ike for a speed ing ticket. Is it that much of a burden 
to probe the vehicle and send it to the tax department? Yes, there could be some l itigating.  
If the h ighway patrol is not enforcing this, who is? One pickup truck at a random stop is not 
the tool we need to enforce this law. 

Colonel James Prochniak: It probably doesn't sound l ike a lot. I am hesitant to bel ieve 
that is a l l  that is involved . 

Representative Rust: At home last week, the news had a shooting and a stabbing . In 
our area there are bigger fish to fry than dyed fuel .  

Colonel James Prochniak: Prioritizing. We are in a response mode rather than a 
proactive mode. We enforce weight l im itations which help infrastructure protection . The 
process of collecting dyed fuel would not be a priority for us. 

Representative Belter: We are not asking you to check every vehicle. Is it such a burden 
to look at the cap and if they see red to check it? I suspect it is just a few people violating 
this. 

(31 : 1 5) 
Colonel James Prochniak: It is true we stop a lot of vehicles and our officers should be 
aware of what is happen ing around them . Our officers are deal ing with the driver and 
reg istration.  I would offer a solution, if our officer notices red fuel we wil l document that 
information and forward it to the tax department and not col lect the sample. 
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Representative Belter: That might be a possibi l ity. It is your presence that wi l l  have 
people abide by the law. 

(34:09) 
Colonel James Prochniak: I would also offer that we could make it wel l  known through 
the media that if we notice this, we wi l l  let the tax department know. If we do alcohol 
saturation,  we let people know. We would rather not arrest them . 

Representative Larson : I can see that as a PR piece.  But forwarding it to the tax 
department seems l ike seeing pot in a car and then forward ing that information to the drug 
un it. Without evidence it wil l not go very far. 

How much overtime have you been logging? 

Colonel James Prochniak: We are logging an extreme amount of overtime. In 20 1 0  and 
201 1 we had 40,000 hours of overtime. We budget for 600 hours of overtime each month. 
That 600 hours is above project overtime. You can only maintain that pace for a whi le. 

Representative Fehr: I n  current law, 57-43.2-4 1 ,  it appears the Highway Patrol is the lead 
agency. (Reads from paragraph 3 . )  

Colonel James Prochniak: The word ing in the law would appear that we do.  We went 
through this process in the 90s and we realized it is not the best fit for our organization .  So 
we had the tax department come to our saturations. 

Representative Fehr: The amendments will sti l l  say, "For purposes of enforcing the 
provisions of this section , the h ighway patrol ,  by agreement with , and the assistance of, the 
commissioner, may:" So even under the amended language, the Highway Patrol would sti l l  
be the lead agency. Is that your understanding? 

Colonel James Prochniak: "May" yes. "Shall" would force our hand. If we come across 
an obvious violation we may get involved . 

Representative Fehr: Who is the lead agency? 

Colonel James Prochniak: When we receive questions, everything is referred to the tax 
department. 

Representative Fehr: In order to comply with what you say is happening, we would need 
to do a rewrite and the amendment doesn't do that. 

Colonel James Prochniak: I would say there could be a simple l ine that through a Memo 
of Understanding (MOU) with the tax department the Highway Patrol provides the 
mechanism and the tax department does the col lection .  I would be for an amendment 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: What I envision is that your department is the one doing the 
inspections. The Highway Patrol has the truck pu l led over already. Then the tax 
department can do their part. 
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Representative Fehr: The Highway Patrol is the lead agency. To what extent is there a 
problem with dyed fuel? 

Colonel James Prochniak: I can't answer since we don't deal with that. 

Representative Fehr: Since the Highway Patrol is the lead agency, is there a better way 
to do this? 

Colonel James Prochniak: The tax department wou ld be better suited . I can check with 
colleagues in other states that are similar to us. 

Representative Fehr: I wou ld appreciate it. 

Representative Kiefert: I n  thinking about the Sheriff's Department, is there a chance? 

Colonel James Prochniak: I can't speak for them. I don't think they want this. 

Representative Larson: I t occurs that this might be similar to it being our job to consider 
laws and we should a lso do the committee clerk's work and other things. 

Attachment #1 from the Tax Department was handed out to the committee. 
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(Comm ittee work) 
Relating to increased fees for use of dyed special fuel in a l icensed motor 
vehicle and display of consumer advisory information on pumps dispensing 
dyed special fuel 

Minutes: Amendment #1 & 2 

Chairman Dennis Johnson : (attachment #1 ) This letter talks about what they are doing in 
surrounding states. Vice Chair  John Wal l  has some amendments. 

Vice Chair John Wal l :  (attachment #2) On page 1 ,  I wou ld leave everything the same 
including Representative Head land's amendment on the 1 st offense. 

Page 2 , delete all overstrike which puts the patrol back into the m ix. Omit a l l  underl ined 
new language on p. 2 .  

Page 3 no changes. Leave #7 the way i t  is with decals. The changes would put the 
H ighway Patrol back in charge and take out notice of violation and leave it with citation . 

Representative Larson : Adding "and the assistance of' on l ine 5 doesn't do anything .  
They are doing i t  with the agreement of the tax commissioner now. They just have to enter 
into a new agreement. It won't do any harm to leave that in .  

Representative Rust: Leave everything on page 2 the way it is in current law? I thought 
the same, "and the assistance of' wou ld have them forego having to get an annual 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

Vice Chair John Wal l :  Since the amendment hasn't been moved , we can remove those 
words. 

Representative Headland: We need to have it clarified what the assistance is. I f  the 
assistance is on the highway pul l ing them over, we need it clarified . If it is helping with the 
paperwork and the IRS, it is someth ing else. 
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Representative Larson : They are on the h ighway. They are already doing this. 

Dan Rouse, Legal Counsel, State Tax Commissioner: We did not ask for that language. 
The objective was to clarify that we are in an assistance role. We don't have police power 
so we can't pul l  people over. 

Representative Larson : You have no problem with removing that language? 

Dan Rouse: Correct. 

Representative Belter: Are you now involved in some of these inspections with a mass 
inspection? 

Dan Rouse: We find out from the highway patrol when they are doing safety inspections. 
While they conduct safety inspections, we inspect fuel tanks. We wil l not pull people over. 

Dan Rouse: We have no problems with the amendments. 

Representative Fehr: What do we want to accomplish? It sounds l ike we want to leave 
things as they are minus the decals and fees. 

Vice Chair John Wal l :  Rather than turning it over to the tax department, we think the 
Highway Patrol should remain charged with it. Now with this bi l l  maybe they will be more 
aggressive in checking the veh icles. 

Representative Fehr: They don't see themselves as a lead agency. Why would th ings 
be d ifferent? 

Vice Chair John Wall : It is part of their responsibil ity right now. Things offered by the 
committee to look for red stains, etc. along with decals wil l  accomplish someth ing . 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: Two things we are accomplishing are raising the fine from 
$250 to $500. The petroleum group is interested in making sure the decals would be on 
the pumps for those who use the wrong fuel accidental ly. 

Representative Fehr: Just to clarify, the fees on the first page, line 1 6  are at $500 from a 
previous motion .  And leave off the words "and the assistance of'? 

Vice Chair John Wal l :  Yes. 

Representative Headland:  The tax department is  fine with taking i t  out. 

Voice Vote taken on amendment. Passed . 

Representative Larson : Moved Do Pass as amended . 

Representative Fehr: Seconded the motion 
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A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 1 3  , No 0 , Absent 0 . 

Do Pass carries. 

Representative Fehr wil l  carry the bi l l .  



Amendment to: SB 2294 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/01/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I l d 

. f f . 
t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tCt{la e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $53,000 
Expenditures 

Appropriations 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2294 with House Amendments increases the fees for use of dyed special fuel in a licensed motor vehicle. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2294 with House Amendments increases the fees associated with the use of dyed special fuel in a 
licensed motor vehicle. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

If enacted , SB 2294 with House Amendments is expected to increase revenues in the highway distribution fund by 
an estimated $53,000 during the 201 3-1 5 biennium. This reflects the increased revenue from the higher fees only. 
There is also an increase in fuels taxes collected in the regular manner due to increased compliance as a result of 
the state's presence in the field , monitoring vehicles and enforcing dyed fuel usage requirements. The positive 
revenue associated with enforcement efforts cannot be determined. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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B ill/Resolution No.:  SB 2294 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0 1 /2 1 /20 1 3  

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r  r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tctpa e un er curren 

201 1 -2013 Biennium 

aw. 
2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $106,000 
Expenditures 

Appropriations 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 201 3-201 5 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact s ummary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2294 increases the fees for use of dyed special fuel in a l icensed motor veh icle. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2294 increases by four-fold the fees associated with the use of dyed special fuel in a l icensed motor 
veh icle. 

3. State fiscal effect detail :  For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

If enacted, SB 2294 is expected to increase revenues in ttie highway d istribution fund by an estimated $1 06,000 
during the 201 3-15 biennium. This reflects the increased revenue from the h igher fees only. There is also an 
increase in fuels taxes collected in the regular manner due to increased compliance as a result of the state's 
presence in the field , monitoring veh icles and enforcing dyed fuel usage requ irements. The positive revenue 
associated with enforcement efforts cannot be determ ined. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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Ti tle .02000 

Adop ted by the Agricu ltu re Commi ttee 

March 28, 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO. 2294 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, rep lace "one thousand" wi th "five hundred" 

Page 2, line 5, remove ", and the assis tance of," 

Page 2 ,  line 1 4, remove the overs trike over "by the highway patrol" 
Page 2, line 1 6, remove the overs trike over "The highway patrol may issue a citation covering 

any violation of this section, and the" 
Page 2 ,  line 1 6, remove "8." 

Page 2 ,  line 1 7 , remove the overs trike over "citation" 
Page 2 ,  line 1 7 , remove "no tice of vio la tion of this sec tion" 

Page 2, line 1 9, remove the overs trike over "citation" 
Page 2 ,  line 1 9, remove "no tice of viola tion of this sec tion" 

Renumber according ly 

Page No. 1 1 3 .071 7.01 002 



Da te: 3/1 5/1 3 

Ro ll Call Vo te #: _1:,__ __ 

House 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTE E  
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

Agriculture 

Legisla tive Council Amendmen t Number 

Commi ttee 

Ac tion Taken :  0 Do Pass rg] Do Not Pass D Amended 0 Consent Calendar 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Mo tion Made By _R_e_._p_. _Be_l_te_r _____ Seconded By Rep. Tro ttier 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Dennis Johnson Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chairman John Wa ll Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Wesley Bel ter Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. Alan Fehr 
Rep. Craig Head land ,,. / 
Rep. Joe Hei lman J VV 
Rep. Dwigh t Kiefer t f' I ""(/J ---
Rep. Diane Larson IU I " � 
Rep. David Rus t \ If� / 
Rep. Wayne Tro ttier ' h.,t v 

' t· / 
\ l ' v 
vv / / 

Total Yes No 

Yes No 

-------------------- ----------------------------

Absen t 

Floor Assignmen t 

If the vo te is on an amendmen t, brief ly indica te in ten t: 



Date: 3/1 5/1 3 

Roll Call Vote #: _.2=---

House 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTE E  
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

Agricu lture 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended 0 Consent Calendar 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By Rep. Headland 

Representatives 
Chairman Dennis Johnson 
Vice Chairman John Wall 
Rep. Wesley Belter 
Rep. Alan Fehr 
Rep. Craig Headland 
Rep. Joe Heilman 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert 
Rep. Diane Larson 
Rep. David Rust 
Rep. Wayne Trottier " 

I' 
\ \ 
\ 

Yes 

-- r  
I V  

f ) v 

Seconded By Rep. Larson 

No Representatives 
Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Marvin Nelson 

f 
" IJ J 

( v-1\ �  /1 
\ a �I ----
\ /n v-

0 ; (, / 
I;'"" ,{ lr-1'/ 'JV 

/ 

Yes No 

Total Yes 
__________ 

No 
_____________ _ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 16,  Subsection a. 

Lower fee to $500 rather than $1 ,000 for first violation 

Su bsection b. second violation remains the same 



Date: 3/1 5/1 3 

Roll Call Vote #: __ _ 

House 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

Agriculture 

Legis lative Council Amendment Numbe r 

Committee 

Action Taken:  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended D Consent Calendar 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By ----'"R....:..ce=p-'--. =-Be.::...l..:..::te-'--r _____ Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chai rman Dennis Johnson Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chai rman John Wa ll Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Wesley Be lte r Rep. Ma rvin Ne lson _.., 
Rep. A lan Fehr /I 
Rep. C raig Headland (// 
Rep. Joe Heilman - A Af\J( 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert / � . VV 
Rep. Diane La rson ! 1... -jL/' 
Rep. David Rust I h / 
Rep. Wayne Trottie r lf\f lV _.... ---.. 

v /" J / / ....... v 

Total Yes ___________________ No ----------------------------

Absent 

F loor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Remove overstrike with Highway Patrol ori page 2. 

Reinstate all old language 



Date: 3/1 5/1 3 

Ro ll Call Vote #: 3 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTE E  
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

House Agriculture Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass � Do Not Pass � Amended D Consent Calendar 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By _ _.:...Rc:...:e..�:..p.:.....:. B=--e=--lt=e'---r _____ Seconded By Rep. Kiefert 

Representatives Yes No 
. Representatives 

Chairman Dennis Johnson X Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chairman John Wal l X .  Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Wesley Be lter X Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. A lan Fehr X 
Rep. Craig Head land X . 

Rep. Joe Hei lman .A:B, 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert X I 
Rep. Diane Larson X r \ 
Rep. David Rust X /( I 11 
Rep. Wayne Trottier X /'- ./ / f.._/ -

. 

/ A d � / ; /  

Yes No 
X: 
X 
X 

I 
I 

.........._ 
./ ..... 

v 

Total Yes ----�5� _____________ 
No 

--�? ______________________ __ 

Absent 1 
--�---------------------------------------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, brief ly indicate intent: 
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Roll Call Vo te #: 4 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

House Agriculture Commi ttee 

Legisla tive Council Amendmen t Number 

Ac tion Taken :  [8:1 Do Pass D Do Not Pass [8:1 Amended D Consent Calendar 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Mo tion Made By __ R_e...._p_. L_a_rs_o_n _____ Seconded By Rep. Haak 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Dennis Johnson X Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chairman John Wal l  X Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Wesley Bel ter x . Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. Alan Fehr X •  
Rep. Craig Headland X 
Rep. Joe Hei lman X 
Rep. Dwigh t Kiefer t X I 
Rep. Diane Larson X /' I \ 
Rep. David Rus t X / .,... /) , 0 
Rep. Wayne Tro ttier X I� / J Co/ � _{)_ _f_ I 

u-
/ 

/ 
Total Yes 6 No 7 / 

Yes No 
X 
X 
X 

Vl 
I 

I 

� ..... 

Absen t __ 0�--------------------------

Floor Assignmen t 

If the vo te is on an amendmen t, briefly indica te in ten t: 



Date: 3/28/1 3 

Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

House Agriculture Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken:  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended D Consent Calendar 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By _R_e_._p_. W_a_ll ______ Seconded By Rep. Larson 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chairman John Wal l  Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Wesley_ Belter Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. Alan Fehr n J 
Rep. Craig Headland \ !l 'i v-
Rep. Joe Heilman \ (I 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert \ (\ 
Rep. Diane Larson , r V  AL/ 
Rep. David Rust \ , V r t v  
Rep. Wayne Trottier ( ) \ £,! 

\ v n f\./ / \ 'I v 
\ 

Total Yes No 
----------------------------

Absent 

F loor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

See attached #2 



Date: 3/28/1 3 

Roll Call Vote #: 2 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. 2294 

House Ag ricu ltu re Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: [gl Do Pass D Do Not Pass [gl Amended D Consent Calendar 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By ___:R....:..:e::..cP:..:..· =La=r-=-so::.:.n.:.._ 
____ 

Seconded By Rep. Fehr 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Dennis Johnson X Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chairman John Wall X Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Wesley Belter X Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. Alan Fehr X 
Rep. Craig Headland X 
Rep. Joe Heilman X 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert X 
Rep. Diane Larson X 
Rep. David Rust X 
Rep. Wayne Trottier X 

Yes No 
X 
X 
X 

Total Yes ----�1�3_______ No ----�0�----------

Absent ----�0 _________________________ _ 

Floor Assignment Rep. Fehr 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 1, 2013 9:08am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_57 _00 5  
Carrier: Fehr 

Insert LC: 13.0717.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2294: Agriculture Committee (Rep. D. Johnson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
( 1 3  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2294 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "one thousand" with "five hundred" 

Page 2, line 5, remove ", and the assistance of," 

Page 2,  line 1 4, remove the overstrike over "by the highway patrol" 

Page 2 ,  line 1 6, remove the overstrike over "The highway patrol may issue a citation 
covering any violation of this section, and the" 

Page 2,  line 1 6, remove "8" 

Page 2,  line 1 7, remove the overstrike over "citation" 

Page 2, line 1 7, remove "notice of violation of this section" 

Page 2, line 1 9, remove the overstrike over "citation" 

Page 2, line 1 9, remove "notice of violation of this section" 

Renumber accordingly 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_57 _005 
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MDT Cracks Down on Dyed Fuel Misuse 

� mt.gov .. 
t'age 1 or L - l 

'------- � 
M o n t A I'Uil ' ti  o r f i -c- i -,g, l  StA t l(l  W o b " l t a  MONTANA DEPARTM ENT O F  TRANSPORTATION 
About MDT Traveler Information Public Involvement Doing Business 

To report suspected 

violators ca l l  

M OT's 24-hour tol l  free 

tip l ine at: 

1-888-FUEL-LAW 
or email  

R E PORT VIOLATORS 

M DT Cracks Down on Dyed Fuel M isuse 
What is Dyed Diesel? 

Dyed d iesel fuel is fuel that has not been taxed and is intended for off­

road use only. When you fi l l  your vehicle with u ndyed fuel at the 

p u m p ,  state and federal taxes a re included in  the tost. These taxes a re 

u sed to help fund construction and maintenance of Montana's publ ic 

roads. 

Dyed d i esel fuel is reg u l a r  diesel fuel that has red dye added to it. Th is  

is done to identify the fuel  as non-taxed and to help enforcement 

officia l s  easily identify it. Dyed diesel is for off-road use only­

exa mp l es include farm e q u i pment and home heati ng.  

If you fi l l  your ta n k  with dyed diesel a n d  drive on Montana's publ ic 

roads, you're breaking the law. 

What are the consequences for using dyed diesel on the p u b l ic 

roads? 

Using u ntaxed fuel (dyed d iesel) in  a l icensed vehicle violates Montana's 

law a n d  reduces the money ava i lable to bui ld  a n d  ma inta i n  Montana state 

h i g hways . 

The pena lties for using dyed fuel on p u bl ic roads in Montana are :  
·---

1 st offense 

up to $ 1 ,000 . 0 0 - Civil  Penalty 

2nd offense 

up to $ 5 , 000.00 - Civi l  Penalty 

3 rd a n d  su bsequent offense 

Cri m i n a l  Penalty - m i n i m u m  fi ne $ 5 3 5 . 00 - maximum $ 1 ,000.00 or by 

i mprisonment for not less than 30 days or more than 6 months, or 

both . 

http:/ /www.mdt.mt.gov/business/fueltax/dyed _ aware.shtml 

F U E L  TAXES 
Overview 

City & Cou nty Allocations 

Fuel Tax Reporting 

Dyed Fuel Use 

FAQs 

Laws/Reg u l ations 

H ELPFUL IN FORMATION 
Forms 

I FTA website 

M a n u a l s  

N ew I n formation for S pecial 

Fuel Users - Contractors 

REPORT VIOLATORS 
To rep o rt suspected 

Violators cal l  MDT's 

24-hou r  tol l  free t ip l ine at: 

1 -888 - FU E L  - LAW 

or e m a i l  REPORT 

V I O LATORS 

1 /3 1 /20 1 3  



MDT Cracks Down on Dyed Fuel Misuse 

Montana law requ ires the use of "dyed diesel decals" on retail  pumps 
containing dyed diesel fuel, a n d  this law is enforced . 

Cameras, Roads & Weather t>1aps Contracting/Consulting 

Privacy & Security Terms of Use Accessibility Contact Us 

@ Montana Depa1tment of Transportation 

http:/ /www.mdt.mt.gov/business/fueltax/ dyed_ aware.shtml 

Page 2 of 2 

113 1/20 1 3  



Letter about a Dyed Fuel Violation Page 1 of 1 

MiN N ESOTA· REVEN U E  
Petroleum taxes Las\ Updated. 1/18/2013 

Letter about a Dyed Fuel Violation 

This notice informs you that the Minnesota Department of Revenue has assessed a penalty against you for the illegal use of dyed 

diesel fuel. Dyed diesel fuel may only be used for specific tax-exempt purposes. 

The penalty for illegal use of dyed fuel is $1 0 per gallon or $1,000, whichever is greater. The penalty is d oubled for each offense. You 

may be criminally prosecuted for multiple offenses. 

If you disagree with the tax order, you have 60 days to appeal or request a penalty abatement. The instructions for filing an appeal 

or penalty abatement are included with this letter. 

httn • I lummi rPVP11 1 1 f'  <::t::Jtp mn.us/husinesses/oetroleum/Pages/ About-a-Dyed-Fuel-Violation. . .  1 /3 1 /20 1 3  



It i s  important that the H ighway Contractor examine fuel  purchase invoices to ensure the sales 
tax was charged. If no sales tax has been charged, the Highway Contractor needs to pay the 
appropriated sales tax when sending in the ir quarterly H i ghway Contractor' s Tax Return or 

report the use tax on l ine 1 4  of the Contractor's Excise Tax Return. If sales tax was charged and 
the fuel is used in a fuel  taxable manner, a credit for the state sales tax is  taken on the H ighway 
Contractor's  Tax Return and the fuel excise tax would be due. The c ity tax credit must be taken 
on the Contractor's Excise Tax Return. 

No refund of fuel  excise taxes w i l l  be paid for undyed (clear) d iesel or biodiesel fuel  used in  
movable machinery or equ ipment. For th is  reason, contractors are encouraged to  use  dyed d iesel 
fuel  i n  the ir equipment or machinery. A l so, no refund w i l l  be paid for undyed fuel  (gasol i ne, 
ethanol b lend, undyed d iese l ,  undyed biodiesel or any other undyed fuel) used in  l icensed 
vehicles, for any reason, in h ighway construction. 

Penalties for I l legal Use of Dyed Fuel 
Penalties apply to anyone who uses dyed d iesel or dyed b iodiesel i n  a l icensed motor vehicle 

operating on South Dakota roads and h ighways. Authorized personnel of the Department of 
Revenue, the I nternal Revenue Serv ice, and the H ighway Patrol may withdraw fuel  from 
l icensed motor vehicles, machinery, equipment and storage faci l ities in  sufficient quantities to 
test for com p l i ance with the law. Any person who refuses to allow an inspection of 

eq u ip ment or fuel as authorized by SDCL 1 0-47B- 1 89 is gu ilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor. 

Penalties d iffer for qual ified and unqual ified l i censed vehicles.  A qualified vehicle is used, 
des igned, or maintai ned for transportation of persons or property, and: 

• Has two ax les and a gross vehicle weight or registered gross vehic le weight exceeding 
26,000 l bs . ;  or 

• Has three or more axles regardless of weight; or 
• I s  used in combi nation when the weight of such combination exceeds 26,000 l bs .  

Persons using dyed d iesel or dyed biodiesel in a qua l ified vehicle, such as a sem i-truck and 
s i m i lar large truck, are subject to the fol l owing penalties:  

• $500 for the first v io lation 
• $ 1  ,000 for each subsequent v iolation 

Persons us ing dyed diesel or dyed biodiesel in  veh icles other than qua l ified veh ic les, such as cars 
or pickup trucks, are subject to these penalties: 

• $250 for the first v io lation 
• $500 for each subsequent v io lation 

The first violation of the dyed-fuel law is a C lass 2 m isdemeanor; any subseq uent violation 
is a Class 6 felony. 

The information in  this section also appl ies to any other type of fuel  that has had dyed added to it 
such as kerosene and biodiesel .  

8 
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North Dakota Diesel Fuel Use 

2008 207,505,950 192,100,846 

2009 210,009,603 191,976,066 2,503,653 (124,780) 

20U) 225,277,996 208,233,444 15,268,393 16,257,378 

2011 278,569,396 283,943,398 53,291,400 75,709,954 

3 7 6,667,456 367,033,001 98,098,060 83,089,603 
............ --.�-· ---- --- """""-�.,....,.,.-- ""�·-·-· -��··�---

Increase 2008 - 2012 82°/o 91o/o 

� 
' 



Dyed Fuel Sampling Statistics 
I ndustry Tyne: Vehicle Tvoe: 

Ag = A  Car = C  

Commercial = C Bus = B 

Personal = P Pickup = P 

Recreational = R Truck = T 

Other = 0 Other = 0 

Sam ples Results 

Sam ples Confirmed Industry Vehicle M ailed Received Sam ple Violation 

Location Date Vehicles Tested Taken Violations Type Type Date Date Percent Percent 

Killdeer 1 01 1 1 120 1 1 2 1 3  2 2 C I  A I  P2 na 0.94% 0.94% 

Grassy Butte 1 0/ 1 2/20 1 1  342 6 5 cs P3 T2 na 1 .75% 1 .46% 

New Town I 0/ 1 3/20 1 1  359 12 12 A3 PS C4 P l l T l  na 3.34% 3.34% 

Will iston 1 1 /22/20 1 1  375 5 4 AI P 1  C2 P3 T l  1 1 /22/20 1 1  1 217/20 1 1  1 .33% 1 .07% 

Berthold 5/8/20 1 2  1 73 3 3 P2 C 1  P3 6/7/2 0 I 2  6/1 9/20 1 2  1 .73 % 1 .73% 

Tioga 5/9/20 1 2  1 27 4 3 P3 P3 617/20 1 2  6/1 9/20 1 2  3. 1 5 %  2.36% 

Will iston 5/1 0/20 1 2  492 0 0 6/7/20 1 2  6/1 9/20 1 2  0.00% 0.00% 

Devils Lake 5/1 6/20 1 2  33 6 6 P3 A3 P6 617/2 0 1 2  6/1 9/2012 1 8. 1 8% I8. 1 8% 

Bismarck 5/1 7/20 1 2  335 5 4 A4 P3 T l  617/2 0 1 2  6/1 9/20 1 2  1 .49% 1 . 1 9% 

El lendale 61 1 3 /20 1 2  93 6 2 P2 P2 6/20/2 0 I 2  7/30/20 1 2  6.45% 2. 1 5% 

Watford City 7/26/20 1 2  275 6 6 P I  CS P6 7/30/2 0 I 2  8/8/2 0 1 2  2. 1 8 %  2. 1 8 %  

Sykeston 1 0/ 1 0/20 1 2  40 1 1 C 1  P 1  1 0/1 5/20 1 2  1 0/25/20 1 2  2.50% 2.50% 

Carrington 1 01 1 0/20 1 2  I 08 1 I P I  P I  1 0/ 1 5/20 I 2  I 0/25/20 1 2  0.93 % 0.93% 

Grafton 1 0/ 1 1 120 1 2  135 4 4 P I  A3 P I  T3 1 0/ 1 5/2 0 1 2  1 0/25/20 1 2  2.96% 2.96% 

Total 3 1 00 6 1  53 1 .97% 1 . 7 1 % 
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North Dakota Retai l  Association 
NO Petroleum Marketers Association 

North Dakota Propane Gas Association 

---- LEG S LAT VE BU LLET N 

• 

Testim ony- S B  2294 

J a n u a ry 30, 2013-Senate Ag Co m m ittee 

Cha i rm a n  M i l l er  a n d  Senate Ag Co m m ittee M e m bers : 

For the reco rd, my n a m e  is M i ke Rud.  Pres ident of the N o rth Da kota Petro l e u m  

M a r keters Associ at ion.  N D P MA a n d  its 400 mem bers u rge a DO PASS 
recommendation on SB 2294. 

N D P M A  got ser ious ly i nvolved i n  this  issu e i n  late 2010. O u r  associat ion offi ce 

received severa l p h o n e  ca l ls fro m  ma rketers q u esti o n i ng what cou l d  be done to 

stop cons u m e rs fro m p u l l i ng the dyed d i esel  hose out of the service tank a n d  

s i m ply st ick i ng the n o zz le  i nto the veh ic le they were fi l l i ng at t h e  p u m p .  I n  fa ct, 

some custo m e rs at these sto res who were fi l l i ng the ir  d i esel  vehic les with c lear  

d i ese l  were ask ing the same q u esti on . 

. We got together  with the Tax Commissioner's Office a n d  the N D  State H ighway 

Patrol  and came up with a game plan to a d d ress the issue. The strategy 

deve l o ped was to step u p  enfo rcem ent thro ugh m o re com p l i a nce ch ecks. I wi l l  

let M r. Schatz te l l  you a bout the su ccess of that effo rt. 

D u ri ng this  t i m e, we a lso d iscussed beefi ng up the fi nes fo r v io l ators. We b e l i eve 

the d o l l a r  a m o u nts p roposed in this b i l l  a re fa i r  and s h o u l d  serve as a strong 

d eterrent.  I ' m  a lso shar ing with you some of the d eca ls  we have ava i l a b l e  n ow 

a n d  some possi b l e  o ptions fo r dyed d i esel decal warni ngs. 

Aga i n, N D P MA wo u l d  ask fo r a DO PASS recommendation on SB 2294 and w i l l  

work with t h e  Tax Comm ission er's Offi ce t o  get t h e  deca l s  i n  p l a ce on dyed d i ese l  • p u m ps .  

Th a n k  y o u  for yo u r  t i m e  a n d  co nsiderati on .  

1 02 5  North 3rd Street • PO Box 1 9 5 6  • Bismarck, N O  5 8 502 • 7 0 1 -223-3 3 70 • Fax 70 1 - 2 2 3-5004 
Web Address: ndretail.org • ndpetroleum.org • ndpropane.org 
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N O  P E TR O L E U M  M A R K E TE R S  A S S O C IA TI O N  

N DPM A News .J u ne 20 1 1  

Motor Fuels Compliance Checks to be Conducted 

The Office of State Tax Commissioner, North Dakota 
Highway Patrol, and the Department of Transportation 
today announced plans for their agencies to conduct j oint 
dyed diesel fuel compliance checks throughout the state 
this summer. 

"The purpose of the compliance effort is to make sure that 
drivers using North Dakota' s  roads are paying the 
appropriate taxes," said Tax Commissioner Cory 
Fong. "Some drivers are filling their diesel vehicle's  tank 
with fuel that has not been taxed at the full rate and that 
isn't fair to those who have followed the law and paid the 
correct tax." 

Clear (undyed) diesel fuel is to be used in licensed 
roadway vehicles and is taxed at 23 cents per gallon. Dyed 
diesel fuel is to be used primarily for off road purposes 
such as industrial, construction and agricultural purposes, 
and is taxed at a reduced 4-cents per gallon. The 
cooperative effort of the Department of Transportation, 
the Highway Patrol, and Tax Department will enable the 
state to stop and test the tanks of diesel vehicles traveling 
on state, county or local roadways. Individuals found 
driving vehicles on roadways with dyed fuel in their tanks 
will be assessed fmes. The fines range from a first 
violation fine of $250 up to $5,000 for subsequent 
violations. Any attempt to prevent, stop, or delay an 
inspection is subject to a civil penalty of $ 1 ,000. 

"These fuel tax dollars go directly toward funding our 
state, county, city, and township roads," said Grant Levi, 
Deputy Director of Engineering for the Department of 

Transportation. "The more vehicles driving the 
streets and highways without having paid the 
correct fuel tax means less money to help build and 
repair our state's  roads." 

The Highway Tax Distribution Fund receives the 
fuel tax paid on gasoline and diesel fuel. Those 
funds are then distributed 6 1 .3 percent to the state, 
34.5 percent to the counties and cities, 2. 7 percent 
to townships, and 1 .5% allocated to public 
transportation. 

"It is important to ensure that there are adequate 
funds to help keep our state and local roadways safe 
for drivers," said Sergeant Brian Bonness of the 
Highway Patrol. "The safety of our citizens is 
important to us." 

The Mirmesota Department of Revenue is assisting 
with this effort by performing training seminars 

with the Office of State Tax Commissioner and Highway 
Patrol.  The seminars will cover the process of dipping 
diesel fuel tanks, obtaining samples, and testing those 
samples for traces of dyed fuel. 

"Making sure that consumers are following the law is 
important to petroleum marketers, too," said Mike Rud, 
President of the North Dakota Petroleum Marketers 
Association. "We look forward to working with the state 
to ensure our state fuel tax laws are being enforced." 

For more information, contact the Department of 
Transportation at 70 1 -328-2500; State Highway Patrol at 
70 1 -328-2455; or the Tax Commissioner's office at 
70 1 -328-3657. 
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Pump Decal Order Form 

Recommended for use in all diesel vehides and engines 

Affix to dispenser any time between June I, 20 I 0 & December I, 20 I 0. 
Must be affixed to dispenser no later than December I ,  20 I 0. 

Required for use in all model year 201 1 and later non-road diesel engines. 
Recommended for use in all other non-highway diesel engines. 

WARNING 
Federal Law prohibits use in  highway veh icles or engines. 

Affix the following label to all 1 5-ppm non-highway ULSD dispensers by 
October I ,  2010 .  
Use this label only if  the sulfur content of the product in the tank is 1 5 -ppm or less . 

3 

Please fill in order quantity below: 

4 

II. � v 

5 
II. � v 

6 
1\. �. " 

7 
� � ) � 

Company 

# I  1 5  ppm Highway $2. 1 0  
Address 

This product is 
UNDYED DIESEL FUE L  

On Highway Use Only 
Legal for Motor Vehicle Use 

This product is 

DYED DIESEL FUEL 

Non-Taxable use only 

Penalty for taxable use 

Off Highway not legal for 

Motor vehicle use 

. Dyed Kerosene 
Nontaxable use only 

Penalty for Taxable Use 

Undyed Untaxed Kerosene 

8 

Non Taxable Use Only 

! WARNING 

-·��on,.pn:� 
� �lnQ. Oonoll•• 
r.t'II"MMnnll lt\el•in•Witlidt 
or trt • rna.'lnttran •kMpNI'Witl!�l'lMMI:t � � �  .... wtlll lhlpot\ltlllt� rel.elno,Oerwlce5shld:I!Mt ....... ltlng '-"In **". 

#2 1 5  ppm Non-Highway $2. 1 0  

# 3  Drive off Decal $3 .00 
City/ST/Zip ________________ _ 

Block 
pump 

#4 Undyed Diesel Fuel $2. 1 0  

# 5  Dyed Diesel Fuel $2. 1 0  

# 6  Dyed Kerosene $2. 1 0  

Return to: 

NDPMA 

I l � 
#7 Undyed Untaxed Kerosene $2. 1 0  

#8 General Warning Decal $4.25 

PO Box 1 956 
Bismarck, ND 58502 

or fax 701 223 5004 

I \ 

Send no payment - invoice will be mailed with decals plus shipping 

ed 



This product is 
UNDYED DIESEL FUEL 

On Highway Use Only 
Legal For Motor Vehicle Use 

. .....----------.... 

. This product is 
DYED DIESEL FUEL 

NON-TAXABLE USE ONLY 
PENALTY FOR TAXABLE USE 

NOT LEGAL FOR 
MOTOR VEH I CLE USE 

ULTRA-LOW SULFUR 
H IGHWAY D I ESEL FUEL 

(1 5-ppm Sulfur Maximum) 
Required for use in all, highway diesel vehicles and engines. 

Recommended for use in all diesel. vehicles and engines. 
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North Dakota Diesel Fuel Use 

2008 I 207,505,950 I 192,100,846 

2009 I 210,009,603 I 191,976,066 I 2,503,653 l (124,780) 

2010 I 225,277,996 208,233,444 15,268,393 1 6,257,378 

2011 I 278,569,396 283,943,398 53,291,400 . 75, 709;954 

201! 3 7 6,667,456 367,033,001 98,098,060 83,089,603 

Increase 2008 - 2012 82°/o 91°/o 

� 
---
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Dyed Fuel Sampling Statistics 
Industn: Tyue: Vehicle ]):ue: 
Ag = A  Car = C  

Commercial = C B us = B  

Personal = P Pickup = P 

Recreational = R Truck = T  

Other = 0 Other = 0 

Samples Results 
Samples Confirmed Industry Vehicle Mailed Received Sample Violation 

Location Date Vehicles Tested Taken Violations Type Type Date Date Percent Percent 

Killdeer 1 0/ 1 1 /20 1 1 213 2 2 CI AI P2 na 0.94% 0.94% 
Grassy Butte 1 0/ 1 2/20 1 1 342 6 5 C5 P3 T2 na 1.75% 1.46% 
New Town 1 0/1 3/20 1 1 359 12 I2 A3 P5 C4 Pl l Tl na 3.34% 3.34% 
W illiston 1 1 /22/20 1 1  375 5 4 AI P I  C2 P3 T1 1 1/22/20 1 1  12/7/20 1 1  1.33 % 1.07% 
Berthold 5/8/20 1 2  1 73 3 3 P2 C1 P3 6/7/2012 6/1912012 1.73% 1.73% 
Tioga 5/9/20 1 2  127 4 3 P3 P3 6/7/2012 6/19/2012 3.15% 2.36% 
Williston 5/1 0/20 1 2  492 0 0 61712012 6/19/2012 0.00% 0.00% 
Devils Lake 511 6/20 1 2  33 6 6 P3 A3 P6 61712012 6/19/20I2 I 8. 18% I8. I8% 
B ismarck 5/1 7/20 1 2  335 5 4 A4 P3 TI 6/7/2012 6/19!20I2 1.49% l. I9% 
Ellendale 6/1 3/20 1 2  93 6 2 P2 P2 6/20/2012 7/30/20I2 6.45% 2. I5% 
Watford City 7/26/20 1 2  275 6 6 PI CS P6 7/30/2012 8/8/2012 2.18% 2.I8% 
Sykeston 1 0/ 1 0/20 1 2  40 1 1 C 1  P 1  10/15/2012 10/25/2012 2.50% 2.50% 
C arrington 1 0/ 1 0/20 1 2  I08 I I P I  PI 10/15/20I2 10/2512012 0.93% 0.93% 
Grafton 1 0/ 1 1 120 1 2  135 4 4 P1 A3 P1 T3 10/1512012 10/2512012 2.96% 2.96% 

Total 3 1 00 61  53 1.97% 1.71% 



North Dakota Diesel Fuel Use 

2008 207,505,950 192,100,846 

2009 2 10,009,603 191,976,066 2,503,653 . 

2010 225,277,996 208,233,444 15,268,393 

201 1 278,569,396 283,943,398 53,291,400 

2012 376,667,456 367,033,001 98,098,060 
,,.,,.., ••. _,...,. ,.-7,,.".:d<.'li•" ·'· 

Increase 2008 - 2012 82o/o 91o/o 

(124,780) 

16,257,378 

75,709,954 

83,089,603 
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Dyed Fuel Sampling Statistics 
Industry Tyne: Vehicle Tvpe: 
Ag = A  Car = C  

Commercial = C Bus = B  

Personal = P Pickup = P 

Recreational = R Truck = T  

Other = 0 Other = O  

Samples Results 
Samples Confirmed Industry Vehicle Mailed Received Sample Violation 

Location Date Vehicles Tested Taken Violations Type Type Date Date Percent Percent 

Killdeer 1 0/1 1 /20 1 1 213 2 2 C1 A1 P2 na 0.94% 0.94% 
Grassy Butte 1 0/1 2/201 1  342 6 5 C5 P3 T2 na 1.75% 1.46% 
New Town 1 0/1 3/20 1 1  359 12 12 A3 P5 C4 P 1 1  T1 na 3.34% 3.34% 
Williston 1 1/22/201 1  375 5 4 A1 P1 C2 P3 T1 1 1/22/201 1  1217/201 1 1.33% 1.07% 
Berthold 5/8/20 1 2  173 3 3 P2 C1 P3 617/2012 6/19/2012 1.73 %  1.73% 
Tioga 5/9/20 1 2  127 4 3 P3 P3 6/7/2012 6/19/2012 3.15% 2.36% 
Williston 5/1 0/20 1 2  492 0 0 617/2012 6/19/2012 0.00% 0.00% 
Devils Lake 5/1 6/20 1 2  33 6 6 P3 A3 P6 617/2012 6/19/2012 1 8.18% 18.18% 
Bismarck 5/1 7/20 1 2  335 5 4 A4 P3 T1 617/2012 6/19/2012 1.49% 1.19% 
Ellendale 6/1 3/20 1 2  93 6 2 P2 P2 6/20/2012 7/30/2012 6.45% 2.15% 
Watford City 7/26/20 1 2  275 6 6 P1 C5 P6 7/30/2012 8/8/2012 2.18% 2.18% 
Sykeston 1 0/1 0/20 1 2  40 1 1 C1 P1 10/15/2012 10/25/2012 2.50% 2.50% 
Carrington 1 0/1 0/20 1 2  108 1 1 P1 P 1  10/15/2012 10/25/2012 0.93% 0.93% 
Grafton 1 0/1 1 /20 1 2  135 4 4 P1 A3 P1 T3 1 0/15/2012 1 0/25/2012 2.96% 2.96% 

Total 3 1 00 61 53 1.97% 1.71% 



Dyed Fuel Penalties - Other Jurisdictions 

Minnesota : 

The penalty for illegal use of dyed fuel is $ 1 0  per gallon or $ 1 ,000, whichever is greater. The 
penalty is doubled for each offense. A person may be criminally prosecuted for multiple 
offenses. Any person who refuses to allow an inspection is subj ect to a $ 1 ,000 penalty. 

South Dakota :  

The penalty for use o f  dyed fuel in vehicles such as a semi-truck or other similar large truck is 
$500 for a first violation and a $ 1 ,000 for each subsequent violation. The penalty for use of dyed 
fuel in a vehicle such as a car or pickup truck is $250 for a first violation and a $500 for each 
subsequent violation. The first violation of the dyed fuel law is a Class 2 misdemeanor; any 
subsequent violation is a Class 6 felony. Any person who refuses to allow an inspection is guilty 
of a Class 2 misdemeanor. 

Montana : 

The penalty for a first offense for using dyed fuel on public roads is up to a $ 1 ,000 Civil Penalty. 
The penalty for a second offense for using dyed fuel on public roads is up to a $5,000 Civil 
Penalty. A third or subsequent offense is subj ect to a Criminal Penalty with a minimum fine of 
$535  to a maximum of $ 1 ,000 or imprisonment for not less than 30 days or more than 6 months, 
or both. 

Internal Revenue Service: 

The Federal penalty for using dyed fuel on a public road is $ 1 0  per gallon or $ 1 ,000, whichever 
is greater, times the number of violations. Any person who refuses to allow an inspection will be 
fined $ 1 ,000 for each refusal, in addition to any other penalty or tax that may be imposed. 
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Testimo ny- S B  2 294 

M a rch 8, 2013-Ho use Ag Co m m ittee 

Cha irman J oh nson a n d  H ouse Ag Co m m ittee M e m bers :  

F o r  t h e  reco rd, m y  n a m e  is  M i ke R u d .  P resident of t h e  N o rth Da kota Petro l e u m  

M a rketers Associ at ion.  N D PMA a n d  its 400 mem bers u rge a D O  PASS 
recommendation on SB 2294. 

N D P MA got seriously i nvolved i n  this  issue i n  l ate 2010.  O u r  associ at ion offi ce 

received seve ra l p h o n e  ca l ls from m a rkete rs q u esti o n i ng what c o u l d  be done to 

stop co nsum ers fro m p u l l i ng the dyed d i esel hose out of the service tank a n d  

s i m ply sti cking t h e  n ozz le i nto t h e  veh ic le  they were fi l l i ng a t  the pu m p . I n  fact, 

some custo m e rs at these stores who were fi l l i ng their  d iesel veh ic les with c lear  

d i esel were aski ng the sa m e  q u esti on .  

We got togeth e r  with  the Tax Co m m issioner's Offi ce a n d  the ND State H ighway 

Patrol and came up with a game p lan  to a d d ress the issue.  The strategy 

d eveloped was to step up enforcement through m o re com p l i a n ce checks. 

D u ri ng th is  t i m e, we a lso d iscussed beefi ng up the fi nes fo r v io lators. We bel ieve 

the d o l l a r  a m o u nts p ro posed in this  bi l l  a re fa i r  a n d  shou l d  serve as a strong 

d ete rrent. 

Aga i n, N D P M A  wo u l d  ask fo r a DO PASS recommendation on S B  2294 and w i l l  

work with t h e  Tax Co m m issioner's  Office t o  get the decals i n  p l a ce on dyed d i esel  

p u m ps. 

T h a n k  you fo r yo u r  t i m e  and co nsiderati on . 

1 02 5  North 3 rd Street • PO Box 1 9 5 6  • Bismarck, NO 5 8 502 • 701 -223-3 3 70 • Fax 7 0 1 - 2 2 3-5004 
Web Address: ndretail.org • ndpetroleum.org • ndpropane.org 
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N DP M A  News .J u ne 20 1 1 

Motor Fuels Compliance Checks to be Conducted 

• The Office of State Tax Commissioner, North Dakota 
Highway Patrol, and the Department of Transportation 
today announced plans for their agencies to conduct joint 
dyed diesel fuel compliance checks throughout the state 
this summer. 

"The purpose of the compliance effort is to make sure that 
drivers using North Dakota' s roads are paying the 
appropriate taxes," said Tax Commissioner Cory 
Fong. "Some drivers are filling their diesel vehicle's tank 
with fuel that has not been taxed at the full rate and that 
isn't fair to those who have followed the law and paid the 
correct tax." 

Clear (undyed) diesel fuel is to be used in licensed 
roadway vehicles and is taxed at 23 cents per gallon. Dyed 
diesel fuel is to be used primarily for off road purposes 
such as industrial, construction and agricultural purposes, 
and is taxed at a reduced 4-cents per gallon. The 
cooperative effort of the Department of Transportation, 
the Highway Patrol, and Tax Department will enable the 
state to stop and test the tanks of diesel vehicles traveling 
on state, county or local roadways. Individuals found 
driving vehicles on roadways with dyed fuel in their tanks • will be assessed fmes. The fines range from a first 
violation fme of $250 up to $5,000 for subsequent 
violations. Any attempt to prevent, stop, or delay an 
inspection is subj ect to a civil penalty of $ 1 ,000. 

"These fuel tax dollars go directly toward funding our 
state, county, city, and township roads," said Grant Levi, 
Deputy Director of Engineering for the Department of 

Transportation. "The more vehicles driving the 
streets and highways without having paid the 
correct fuel tax means less money to help build and 
repair our state's roads." 

The Highway Tax Distribution Fund receives the 
fuel tax paid on gasoline and diesel fuel. Those 
funds are then distributed 6 1 .3 percent to the state, 
34.5 percent to the counties and cities, 2.7 percent 
to townships, and 1 .5% allocated to public 
transportation. 

"It is important to ensure that there are adequate 
funds to help keep our state and local roadways safe 
for drivers," said Sergeant Brian Bonness of the 
Highway Patrol. "The safety of our citizens is 
important to us." 

The Minnesota Department of Revenue is assisting 
with this effort by performing training seminars 

with the Office of State Tax Commissioner and Highway 
Patrol. The seminars will cover the process of dipping 
diesel fuel tanks, obtaining samples, and testing those 
samples for traces of dyed fuel. 

"Making sure that consumers are following the law is 
important to petroleum marketers, too," said Mike Rud, 
President of the North Dakota Petroleum Marketers 
Association. "We look forward to working with the state 
to ensure our state fuel

_ 
tax laws are being enforced." 

For more information, contact the Department of 
Transportation at 70 1 -328-2500; State Highway Patrol at 
70 1 -328-2455; or the Tax Commissioner's office at 
70 1 -328-3657. 
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Pump Decal Order Form 

Required for use in all highway diesel vehicles and engines. 

Recommended for use in all diesel vehicles and engines 

Affix to dispenser any time between June I, 2010 & December I ,  2010. 
Must be affixed to dispenser no later than December I ,  20 I 0 .  

U LTRA LOW SULFUR 
NON HIGHWAY DIESEL FUEL 

(15 ppm Sulfur Maximum) 

Required for use in  a l l  model year 201 1 and later non-road diesel engines. 
Recommended for use in all other non-h ighway diesel engines. 

WARNING 
Federal Law prohibits use in highway vehicles or engines. 
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This product is 
UNDYED DIESEL FUEL 

On Highway Use Only 
Legal for Motor Vehicle Use 

This product is 

DYED DIESEL FUEL 

Non-Taxable use only 

Penalty for taxable use 

OffHighway not legal for 

Motor vehicle use 

Dyed Kerosene 
Nontaxable use only 

Penalty for Taxable Use 

Undyed Untaxed Kerosene 
Affix the following label to all 1 5-ppm non-highway ULSD dispensers by 
October 1 ,  2 0 1 0 .  C!iC� � 

Non Taxable Use Only 
Use this label only if the sulfur content of the product in the tank is 1 5 -ppm or less. 

3 

Please ftll in order quantity below: 

# 1  1 5  ppm Highway $2. 1 0  

#2 1 5  ppm Non-Highway $2. 1 0  

# 3  Drive off Decal $3 ,00 

#4 Undyed Diesel Fuel $2. 1 0  

#5 Dyed Diesel Fuel $2. 1 0  

# 6  Dyed Kerosene $2. 1 0  

#7 Undyed Untaxed Kerosene $2. 1 0  

# 8  General Warning Decal $4.25 

8 ! WARNING 

Company 

Address 
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City/ST/Zip 
----------------

Return to: 

NDPMA 
PO Box 1 956 
Bismarck, ND 58502 

or fax 701 223 5004 

Send no payment - invoice will be mailed with decals plus shipping 

Block ed 
pump 



Schatz, Kev i n  R.  

-I nfo-TAX Motor Fue l  Tax 
Thursday, January 24, 20 1 3  1 1 : 1 1  AM 
Schatz, Kevin R. 
FW: McKenzie Cou nty Sheriff's Office 

Fro m :  Gary Schwartzenberger [mailto :GSchwartzenberger@co.mckenzie.nd. us] 
Sent: Thursday, January 24, 2013 1 1 :09 AM 
To: -Info-TAX Motor Fuel Tax 
Subject: McKenzie County Sheriffs Office 

To Whom it May Concern: 

By way of introduction; I am the lead investigator for our Sheriff's office and am inqu i ring on whethe r  you could assist us  

in  clean ing u p  the a m o u nt of truckers and d iesel pickups using red-dyed d iesel fue l  on the  roadways. Our  department 

has been getti ng seve ra l t ips that truckers are pul l ing up to fuel stations and fi l l i ng up with off-road fuel beca use it is a 

few cents cheaper.  I contacted the NDHP and was told that they tu rn it over to the tax department i nspectors and your 

department j ust sends out  fines. I s  this correct, or a re the i r  other ways to enforce them to use the taxed fuel as  they 

shou ld? We, here in o i lf ield co untry a re feel ing the devastation of these trucks on our roads and if they a re creating the 

da mage and not paying the appropriate tax that u lt imately should go back into the road repa irs, shou ldn't they then be 

he ld accountable? P lease a dvise at your soonest. Thank  you .  

lJeputy Gary Schwa rtzenberger 

McKenzie County She riffs Department 

201 5th St NW 

PO Box 591 

Watford City ND 58854 

Office: 701-444-3654 

Fax: 701-444-2105 



Schatz, Kev i n  R.  

Gary Schwartzenberger [GSchwartzenberger@co.mckenzie .nd . us] 
Thursday, January 24, 201 3 1 1  :37 AM 
Schatz, Kevin R. 
McKenzie County Dyed Fuel I nfo 

Kevin, 

G reat ta lk ing with you about the "Red-dye Enforcement Team" you have put together. Per our  conversat ion; as  of right 

now, the N D H P  is  the on ly agency that is a uthorized to assist your  department in enforc ing  red-dye d iesel fuel checks in 

North Dakota .  I a ppreciate your  efforts in the legis lature about possibly changing the l aws to a l low other agencies to 

assist i n  this matter, s i nce this d i rectly effects our roadways. I wi l l  be i n  contact with you on a ny issues that come u p  

here, such a s ;  reta i lers sel l ing red-fuel t o  over t h e  road trucks and d iesel pickups, as wel l  a s  poss ib ly gett ing some o f  our  

personnel  trained i n  recogniz ing this type of  fue l .  Aga in ,  thanks for your t ime and  i nformat ion.  Ta ke care. 

V/R, 

Deputy G a ry Schwa rtzen berger 

McKenzie County Sheriffs Department 

201 5th St NW 

PO Box 591  

Watford City N D  58854 

Office : 701-444-3654 

Fax: 701-444-2 105 

' / ../ 
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North Dakota H ig hway Patro l  
Colonel James J .  Prochniak, Superintendent 
State Capitol, 600 E Boulevard Ave. Dept. 504 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0240 
Telephone: 701 -328-2455 

Honorable Dennis Johnson 
Chairman 
House Agricu lture Committee 
State Capitol 
Bismarck, ND 58505 

Dear Representative Johnson: 

March 22, 201 3 

Jack Dalrymple 
Governor 

State of North Dakota 

In response to Representative Fehr's inquiry and as a fol low-up to the emai l message sent to 
the Agriculture Committee members, the below information gathered from Kevin Schatz with the 
Tax Department, sheds l ight on how some of our neighboring states conduct the business of 
collecting dyed fuel. I 'm afraid in my brief inquiry I did not come up with a new or streamlined 
method that would be less complicated. I hope you find the information useful .  

There are 35 states that currently have a dyed fuel enforcement program.  Most states 
col lect motor fuel taxes through their revenue departments but some also col lect them 
through their transportation departments. Based on information we have gotten at national 
motor fuel conventions ,  the revenue and transportation departments are trained to conduct 
fuel inspections with the assistance of law enforcement agencies who often have been 
trained as wel l .  

MN Department of  Revenue has staff that conducts dyed fuel compliance with the 
assistance of HP and motor carriers for traffic control and safety; officers are also trained to 
conduct fuel inspections. SD Department of Revenue has staff that conducts dyed fuel 
compliance with the assistance of any law enforcement officer for traffic control and safety; 
officers are also trained to conduct a fuel inspection if they have probable cause. MT 
Department of Transportation has staff that conducts dyed fuel compliance with the 
assistance of HP and motor carriers for traffic control and safety; officers are also trained to 
conduct fuel inspections. 

The surrounding states basically conduct their inspections the same way we have been 
doing . 

If I can be of any further assistance, please let me know. 

jjp/gs 

Sincerely, 

J�=�H�� 
Colonel ,  NDHP 
Superintendent 

Fax: 701 -328-1 7 1 7  - E-mail: ndhpinfo@nd.gov - NDHP Website: www.nd.gov/ndhp - NO State Website: www.nd.gov 
An Internationally Accredited Law Enforcement Agency Providing Professional Service 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B I LL 2294 

Page 2, l ine 5, remove ", and the assistance of," 

Page 2, l ine 14, remove overstrike on "by the highway patrol" 

Page 2, l ine 16, remove overstrike on  "The highway patrol may issue a citation covering any violation of 
this section, and the" 

Page 2, l ine 17, remove overstrike on "citation" 

Page 2, l i ne 17, remove "notice of violation of this section" 

Page 2, l ine 19, remove overstrike on "citation" 

Page 2, l ine 19, remove "notice of violation of this section" 




